
*All times are approximate and subject to change. The committee chair reserves the right to set the
order of the agenda. Please contact Susan Pickard, FCIC staff, at (602) 452-3252 with any questions
concerning this agenda. Any person with a disability may request a reasonable accommodation, such
as auxiliary aids or materials in alternative formats, by contacting Angela Pennington at (602) 452-
3547. Requests should be made as early as possible to allow time to arrange the accommodation.

Family Court Improvement Committee 
October 15, 2020; 10:00 a.m. – 12:30 p.m.  
Virtual Meeting 
Conference Call Number: (408) 792-6300  Access Code: 133 512 3450 

Time* Agenda Items  Presenter 

10:00 a.m. Call to Order JUDGE PAUL MCMURDIE, CHAIR 

10:05 a.m. Housekeeping and Member Roll Call KAY RADWANSKI, STAFF 

10:10 a.m. Welcome, Opening Remarks, and 
Introductions  

JUDGE MCMURDIE 

10:15 a.m. September 3, 2020 Minutes 
Formal Action Requested 

JUDGE MCMURDIE 

10:20 a.m. 2021 Meeting Dates 
Formal Action Requested 

KAY RADWANSKI 

10:25 a.m. Child Support Guidelines Review 
Subcommittee Update 

Possible Formal Actions 

JUDGE DAVID GASS 

11:15 Workgroup Updates
 Training Workgroup

 Forms Workgroup
o Application and Affidavit for Entry of

Default in Family Cases
Formal Action Requested

 Statutes and Rules Workgroup
o R-19-0047 – ARPOP Rule 35

Formal Action Requested 
o ARFLP Rule 20

Formal Action Requested 

JUDGE PETERSON 

JANET SELL 

JUDGE BRUCE COHEN 
JUDGE MCMURDIE 

JANET SELL 

12:30 Good of the Order/Call to the Public JUDGE MCMURDIE 

Adjournment

Next meeting:  February 18, 2021 
2021 meetings: February 18; May 20; September 16, November 18 

1 of 69



2 of 69



FAMILY COURT IMPROVEMENT COMMITTEE
Draft Minutes 
September 3, 2020 10:00 a.m. 
Virtual Meeting 

Present: 

Telephonic: Judge Paul McMurdie (chair), Kip Anderson, Brian Bledsoe, Benjamin Deguire, Kellie 
DiCarlo, Judge R. Erin Farrar, Judge Elaine Fridlund-Horne, Judge Joseph Goldstein, CaSaundra 
Guadalupe, Sabrina Lopez, Patricia Madsen, Tracy McElroy, Jennifer Mihalovich, Judge Michael D. 
Peterson, Judge Greg Sakall (also proxy for Joi Hollis, PhD.), Janet Sell, Megan Spielman 

Absent/Excused: Judge Bruce Cohen, Jeremiah Kaplan, Vance Simms 

Presenters/Guests: Lori Ford, member of the public; Judge David Gass, Court of Appeals, Division I; 
Kay Radwanski, Domestic Violence Court Specialist, AOC; Judge Gerald Williams, Maricopa County 
Justice Courts 

Administrative Office of the Courts (AOC) Staff: Theresa Barrett, Angela Pennington, Susan Pickard 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS

A. Welcome and Opening Remarks

The September 3, 2020, meeting of the Family Court Improvement Committee (FCIC) was
called to order at 10:05 a.m. by Judge Paul McMurdie, chair.  Susan Pickard went over
housekeeping issues and completed roll call.  Judge McMurdie introduced new members,
Kip Anderson and Jeremiah Kaplan.  Mr. Anderson and Mr. Kaplan introduced themselves.

The draft minutes from the May 5, 2020 meeting were presented for approval.

Motion: Approval of the May 5, 2020 minutes.  Moved by Judge Joseph Goldstein.  Seconded
by Janet Sell.  Motion passed unanimously.

II. BUSINESS ITEMS AND POTENTIAL ACTION ITEMS

A. Rule Change Petition R-19-0047, Rule 35, Rules of Protective Order Procedure (Out of order)

Judge Gerald Williams discussed his petition to provide a solution to limited jurisdiction court
(LJC) judges issuing injunctions against harassment (IAH) that conflict with family court
orders.  He explained that the initial solution was for the LJC judge to clear the petition and, if
the order was granted, have it transferred to family court, however this would cause more
problems and create a conflict of law issue.  The subsequent proposed remedy is to stop
placing minors as protected parties on an IAH if there is a family court order.  Judge Gass
asked, Kay Radwanski, Domestic Violence Specialist, Administrative Office of the Courts
(AOC), and staff to the Committee on the Impact of Domestic Violence and the Courts

3 of 69



(CIDVC), to discuss a comment to the petition by that committee.  Ms. Radwanski explained 
that CIDVC was concerned about whether a pro se litigant would know that they would have 
to go to the superior court to request an IAH, the distance for plaintiffs to travel in rural 
counties, and whether the superior court could even have jurisdiction over people that are 
not the subject of the family court case. 

A member asked to have on the record that as someone who lives in a rural county, she felt 
that if plaintiffs “really want the family court to know about it, they don’t have any problem 
getting into court with motions for temporary orders without notice.” 

Judge McMurdie referred the issue to the Statutes and Rules workgroup and mentioned that 
the Supreme Court requested the input of the Family Court Improvement (FCIC).  Judge 
McMurdie asked the workgroup to come back with a proposal and the issue would be 
addressed in the October meeting to be passed along to the Staff Attorney’s office by the end 
of October deadline. 

B. Child Support Guidelines Review Subcommittee Update

Judge Gass, chair of the Child Support Guidelines Review Subcommittee (FCIC-CSGRS),
explained that the subcommittee formed workgroups to provide recommendations on the
issues which the 2017 Interim Report directed the subcommittee to address and issues they
have discussed on their own.  These include:

• adjusted gross income, including how to attribute income beyond regular, full-time
employment, definitions, and what constitutes regular-full-time

• low-income obligors with multiple orders

• tax implications

o no deductions, but credits for dependents

o the non-deductibility of spousal maintenance

• Health Saving Accounts (HSA) and Flexible Spending Accounts (FSA)

• increasing the “cap” on Table A

o how much should child support be if the cap is reached

o disparity in incomes with high-income earners

• adjusting the “step system” on Table A

o closer to equal times means costs are being duplicated versus being shared

• Restyling

o Increase readability and ease of understanding for pro se litigants

4 of 69



o language changes, e.g., custody versus legal decision-making

o mirroring statutory language

Judge Gass explained that the report from the subcommittee will be delayed.  The COVID-19 
pandemic affected the ability of the subcommittee to receive in a timely manner.  The report 
is expected to be completed by March 2021. 

C. SB1555 - Amending A.R.S. §§ 25-503, 25-516, and 25-522

Ms. Sell discussed Senate Bill 1555, which included two initiatives promoted by the Division
of Child Support Enforcement.  The first was an amendment to A.R.S. § 25.503 (A) to expand
the definition of “insufficient funds” to include any kind of payment, not just personal checks.
The second amended A.R.S. § 25-516 to allow for the creation of a child support lien by
recording the child support order to secure future payments of support rather than obtaining
a lien only after arrears have accrued and would include both the amount owed when
recorded and any subsequent amounts.  The obligor would be aware via the order, so
warning letters are no longer required.  Lastly, an administrative review would be available if
the obligor requests a payoff or contests the balance.

D. Workgroup Updates

Research and Innovation Workgroup

The Research and Innovation workgroup met to consider the topics and ideas which had
been presented to them.  Judge Greg Sakall completed a straw poll to ascertain the direction
the group should take.  There were four topics of interest: tiering family law cases and the
summary decree process; how to increase collaboration and community resources; one
court, one judge; and trauma-informed processes and procedures.  Judge Sakall was asked
about the new Domestic Violence Legal Licensed Practitioner program and whether this
workgroup would be involved or assisting in its implementation.  Judge Sakall stated the
workgroup would be willing to assist in any way.

Forms/Instructions/Publications Workgroup

The Forms/Instructions/Publications workgroup worked on the Affidavit of Default and the
Affidavit of Financial Information.  The Affidavit of Default has been submitted to the
Supreme Court.  The group recommended not to change the Affidavit of Financial
Information.  Based on the Domestic Violence Legal Licensed Practitioner Program, the
workgroup would like to review the Limited Scope Representation Form.

Training Workgroup

Judge Michael Peterson presented the results of the Family Law Judge Survey.  He informed
the committee that he had been speaking to new member Mr. Kaplan about the partnership
between Arizona State University and the AOC to develop new trainings, including trainings
for family court judges.  The workgroup has also been presented with the possibility of an
opportunity to train judges on the effects of trauma on adults, children, and relationships.

5 of 69



There was discussion on how, when, and the best venues to circulate the trainings and 
additional training tools such as mentorships for judges and informational materials. 

Statutes and Rules Workgroup 

Judge McMurdie stated the Statutes and Rules workgroup has been working on several 
changes to Title 25.  There are several stylistic changes and one substantive change 
regarding same sex marriage, which is being revised to align with the statute language.  In 
Section 25-325, it was suggested, and agreed upon, to remove the word “maiden” from the 
title making it “Decree; finality; restoration of name.” 

Motion: To adopt and recommend the proposed amendments for inclusion in a future judicial 
branch legislative package with the suggested change.  Moved by Janet Sell.  Seconded by 
Megan Spielman.  Motion passed unanimously. 

III. OTHER BUSINESS

A. Announcements/Call to the Public

• Lori Ford addressed the committee.

• There were no announcements

B. Next Meeting.  Thursday, October 15, 2020; 10 a.m.
Virtual Meeting 

The meeting adjourned at 11:38 pm. 

6 of 69



FAMILY COURT IMPROVEMENT COMMITTEE 

Date of Meeting: 

October 15, 2020 

Type of Action Required: 

[X] Formal
Action/Request

[  ] Information Only 

[  ] Other 

Subject: 

2021 Meeting Dates 

PRESENTER(S):  Kay Radwanski, Staff 

DISCUSSION:  The following dates are proposed as the FCIC meeting dates: 

• Thursday, February 18
• Thursday, May 20
• Thursday, September 16
• Thursday, November 18

RECOMMENDED ACTION OR REQUEST (IF ANY): Motion to approve the dates as 
proposed. 

7 of 69



8 of 69



FAMILY COURT IMPROVEMENT COMMITTEE 

Date of Meeting: 

October  15, 2020 

Type of Action Required: 

[  ] Formal 
Action/Request 

[X] Information Only

[  ] Other 

Subject: 

Child Support Guidelines 
Review Subcommittee 
(CSGRS) Update 

PRESENTER(S):    Judge David Gass, CSGRS Chair 

DISCUSSION:  Judge Gass will provide an update on the: 
• issues referred to this subcommittee for further review,
• other issues being discussed by the subcommittee,
• progress of the economic and case file review, and
• recommendation to date.

RECOMMENDED ACTION OR REQUEST (IF ANY): Information only. 

9 of 69



10 of 69



Review of  
the Arizona Child Support Guidelines: 

Followup from August 24 Meeting 
Prepared for October 5 Meeting

Submitted to: 
Arizona Supreme Court 

Administrative Office of the Courts 

Submitted by: 
Jane Venohr, Ph.D. 

1570 Emerson St., Denver, CO 80218 | Tel: (303)837-1555 |centerforpolicyresearch.org 

(Working Draft: September 21, 2020) 

Points of view expressed in this document are those of the author and do not necessarily represent the 
official position of the Court. The authors are responsible for any errors and omissions. 

11 of 69



CONTENTS 
Combined Incomes above $20,000 per Month ............................................................. 1 

Treatment of High Income in Other States ................................................................ 1 
Is There A Need to Extend the Schedule to Higher Incomes? ..................................... 2 
How Are Orders Being Calculated for Higher Incomes? Case File Data Findings  .......... 2 

Attributed Income and Usual Hours Worked ................................................................ 3 
Treatment of Child-Related Tax Benefits ..................................................................... 5 
Deviation Reasons Including Round-Off ....................................................................... 6 
Parenting Time Adjustments and Deviations ................................................................ 6 
Income Deductions for Other Children ........................................................................ 8 
Side-by-Side Comparisons of Existing and Proposed BR5 Update .................................. 9 
Color-Coding of Area Affected by the Self-Support Reserve (SSR) in Proposed Changes . 9 

12 of 69



1 

COMBINED INCOMES ABOVE $20,000  PER MONTH 
The existing Arizona child support guidelines schedule provides basic obligations for combined adjusted 
gross incomes up to $20,000 per month.  For incomes above $20,000, the guidelines provide that: 

If the Combined Adjusted Gross Income of the parties is greater than $20,000 per month, the amount set forth for 
Combined Adjusted Gross Income of $20,000 shall be the presumptive Basic Child Support Obligation. The party 
seeking a sum greater than this presumptive amount shall bear the burden of proof to establish that a higher 
amount is in the best interests of the children, taking into account such factors as the standard of living the children 
would have enjoyed if the parents and children were living together, the needs of the children in excess of the 
presumptive amount, consideration of any significant disparity in the respective percentages of gross income for 
each party and any other factors which, on a case by case basis, demonstrate that the increased amount is 
appropriate. 

Two considerations for high incomes are: 
 Should the schedule be extended from combined adjusted gross incomes of $20,000 per month to a

higher amount? Economic evidence of child-rearing expenditures is available to update the schedule
up to combined adjusted gross incomes of $34,100 per month using the newest Betson-Rothbarth
measurements (BR5) updated to August 2020 price levels and up to $38,800 per month using the
Betson-Rothbarth measurements underlying the existing schedule (BR2).

 Is the provision requiring “The party seeking a sum greater than the presumptive amount shall bear
the burden of proof….” appropriate for Arizona families and children?  Is it an impediment to
seeking a higher amount?

Treatment of High Income in Other States 
No state has a presumptive cap on child support.1  Further, Arizona’s provision of explicitly placing the 
burden of proving an increased amount is appropriate on the party seeking a higher amount is unique to 
Arizona.  Instead, most states treat the highest amount on the schedule as a minimum and provide for 
court discretion for incomes above the highest amount.  Most states that have recently updated their 
guidelines consider combined gross incomes up to $30,000 per month.  The $30,000 amount relates to 
the available economic evidence on the rate that the percentage of income spent on children changes at 
very high incomes.  There is insufficient number of very high-income families in the underlying data (i.e., 
the Consumer Expenditure Survey conducted by the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics) to know the rate of 
change.  Explicitly, it is not known whether families with combined gross incomes of $40,000 per month 
devote the same percentage of income to child-rearing as families with combined incomes of $100,000 
per month. 

According to research conducted in 2016 with some known updates, there are 12 states that provide a 
presumptive formula to an infinite amount of income.2  The neighboring states of California and Nevada 
are two of the states that provide a formula for an infinite amount of income.  Both Colorado and New 
Mexico consider combined adjusted gross incomes up to $30,000 per month, and provide for court 

1Venohr, Jane. (2016). Review of the Nevada Child Support Guidelines, Report to the State of Nevada Division of Welfare and 
Support Services, Child Support Enforcement Program, Carson City, NV. Retrieved from 
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Session/79th2017/Exhibits/Senate/JUD/SJUD144D.pdf.  Note that this review was conducted in 
2016 and Nevada eliminated its presumptive maximum in 2019. 
2Ibid.  The updates are now Nevada provides a formula to an infinitive amount of income and Pennsylvania no longer provides 
that its formula is presumptive, rather it is advisory. 

13 of 69



2 

discretion for incomes above the highest amount considered in the schedule, but it cannot be less than 
than the highest amount unless there is a guidelines deviation. 

Is There A Need to Extend the Schedule to Higher Incomes? 
Theoretically, extending the schedule to higher incomes will improve the predicted amounts among 
high-income parents considering the establishment or modification of a child support order.  Further, it 
will produce more consistent support awards at higher incomes. 

According to the 2018 U.S. Census American Community Survey, the median income of Arizona families 
that included a married couple living with their own children under age 18 years old is $87,646 per year. 
According to the same data source, 11 percent of all Arizona married-couple families with and without 
children have incomes more than $200,000 per year in 2018.  (The data is not readily separable for 
those with and without children.) 

Of the 712 Arizona orders sampled with an order established or modified in 2018, 3% (21 orders) had 
combined adjusted gross incomes over $20,000 per month.  This is up from 1% from the last case file 
review that considered orders established or modified in 2013. 

Among the 712 orders sampled, 2% had incomes between $20,000 and $32,000 per month, so 
extending the schedule to the highest level for which economic data is available could provide greater 
predictability and consistency for these orders. 

In conclusion, although there is not a large percentage of high-income cases, the percentage is 
increasing and will undoubtedly increase in the future. 

How Are Orders Being Calculated for Higher Incomes? Case File Data Findings  

Higher Incomes Deviate More Frequently 
Based on the preliminary findings from the 2018 court case file data, guidelines deviations are more 
common in higher income cases: 43% among all high-income orders and 43% among those with incomes 
of $20,001 to $32,000 per month.  In contrast, based on preliminary analysis, the guidelines deviation 
rate is 34% among all 712 orders.  (This has not been adjusted for those that were rounded.  This is 
discussed later.) 

The 43% deviation rate among high-income cases can be further broken down into upward and 
downward deviations: 

 19% (of all 21 high-income orders) were based on upward deviations guidelines deviations; and
 24 percent (of all 21 high-income orders) were downward deviations.

Although there are too few cases for analysis of subsamples, it appears that upward deviations among 
high-income cases were more likely when there was a large income disparity and one parent had an 
income less than $10,000 per month. Among downward deviations, the patterns were less consistent: 
some had guidelines-calculated amounts less than $0, others had essentially equal custody, and still 
others had different circumstances. 

14 of 69



3 

Does the Highest Amount on the Current Schedule Act as a Cap? 
There are two ways that the current schedule can act as a cap. 

1. Guidelines users populate the parties’ incomes such that they never exceed $20,000 per month.
2. Orders are set using the highest amount on the schedule for that number of children.

Based on the preliminary findings from the case file data, neither appear to be frequently done. 

Do Guidelines Users Cap Income? There was only one order in which the combined income was exactly 
$20,000 per month.  For this order, only the obligated parent had income and the parent due support 
had no income on the guidelines worksheet.  Whether the $20,000 was the actual income of the 
obligated parent or inserted in the worksheet because it is the highest schedule amount is unknown.  
There were no other orders in which the combined income was exactly $20,000 per month.  This 
suggests that worksheet users are not capping incomes at $20,000 when populating the worksheet. 

Are High-Income Orders Set Using Schedule Amounts at $20,000? For the purposes of the guidelines 
calculation, it appears most of the high-income guidelines calculations used the basic obligations at 
$20,000.  However due to adjustments for parenting-time and guidelines deviations, the final order 
rarely reflected that amount. 

ATTRIBUTED INCOME AND USUAL HOURS WORKED 
Arizona statute3 provides for imputation of income at full-time employment at minimum wage absent 
contrary evidence.    One possible piece of contrary evidence is labor market data on usual hours 
worked for specific occupations, particularly low-skill and entry level positions. Several states and courts 
are recognizing that many entry and low level positions (e.g., service sector jobs) offer less than 40-hour 
workweeks and are imputing income at the usual hours worked for those specific occupations.   

Exhibit 1 show the average weekly hours for selected industries in Arizona.  When Arizona-specific data 
are not available for a specific industry, U.S. average data is provided.  Exhibit 1 also shows the number 
of Arizona employees in these selected industries, the year-over-year increase or decrease in 
employment, entry wage for a specific occupation in that industry and the percentage of Arizona 
employees in that industry. 

Exhibit 1 show that there is a dramatic decrease in the number of jobs in the leisure and hospitality 
sector in the last year undoubtedly due to the Covid-19 pandemic.  Exhibit 1 also shows the average 
hours per week are significantly less than 40 hours per week in the leisure and hospitality sector.  In all, 
the average hours in several of the industries are below 40 hours per week.   This suggests that income 
imputation below 40 hours per week may be appropriate depending on the industry that the party could 
be employed. 

The entry-level wages are from 2018.  Most are below Arizona’s 2020 minimum wage of $12.00. Arizona 
will raise its minimum wage to $12,15 per hour on January 1, 2021. In all, the preliminary findings from 
the analysis of case file data suggests that imputing above minimum wage is probably not appropriate 
for those with little employment history and few skills. 

3 Arizona Revised Statutes §25-320 (N). 

15 of 69



4 

In addition to providing data relevant to income imputation, this subsection also fulfills federal 
requirements to consider labor market data.  Federal regulation (45 C.F.R 302.56 (h)(1)) requires the 
consideration of labor market data such as the unemployment rate, hours worked, and earnings for 
various occupations.  The intent of the federal regulation is to assist states with the development of 
income imputation provisions reflective of labor market conditions. 

EXHIBIT 1: LABOR MARKET DATA FROM SELECT INDUSTRIES 

Arizona 
Employment 
(Aug. 2020)4 

Arizona 
Year-over-

Year 
Change5 

Percent of 
Arizona’s 

Total 
Nonfarm 

Employment 

Arizona’s 2018 
Entry Wage of 

Selected 
Occupation6  

Average 
Weekly Hours 
of all Arizona 

or U.S. 
employees 

(Aug. 2020)7 

Total Nonfarm employment 2,864,200 - 3.2% N.A. 

Total Private 2,436,000 -3.6% 85% 35.0 (AZ) 

Select Industries 

 Manufacturing 179,800 -4.3% 6% 
Tool and Die 
makers: $14.47 39.9 (AZ) 

 Construction 170,300 -1.1% 6% 
Laborer: 

$12.12/hr 
38.0 (US) 

 Wholesale trade 104,400 +6.0% 4% 
Driver: 

$10.94/hr 
38.4 (US) 

 Retail trade 328,000 +0.8% 11% Cashiers: 
$10.80/hr 

30.7 (US) 

 Transportation & warehousing 121,400 +1.8% 4% 
Order Clerk: 
$11.87/hr 34.7 (AZ) 

 Professional & business services 420,000 -6.0% 15% 
File Clerk: 
$12.08/hr 

36.2 (AZ) 

 Leisure and hospitality 268,000 -19.1% 9% 
Maids: 

$10.96hr 
25.8 (US) 

Exhibit 1 focused on employment, entry-level wages, and average hours worked by industry.  It did not 
discuss unemployment rates.  As of August 2020, Arizona’s unemployment rate was 5.9%, which is 
significantly less than the U.S. average of 8.4%.8 Both rates are higher than before the Covid-19 
pandemic.  The August 2019 unemployment rates were 4.6% for Arizona and 3.7% for the U.S. average.  
There is considerable variation in unemployment rates by region.  Among metropolitan areas,  Yuma 
MSA (Yuma County)  has the highest unemployment rate (16.4%), and Sierra Vista-Douglas MSA has the 

4 Arizona Department of Commerce.  (n.d.)  Industry Employment and Wages (August 2020).   Retrieved from 
https://www.azcommerce.com/oeo/labor-market/industry-employment/ 
5 Ibid. 
6 Arizona Commerce Authority.  (n.d.) Occupation Employment and Wages. Retrieved from 
https://www.azcommerce.com/oeo/labor-market/occupation-employment/ 
7 Arizona data is not available for all employment sectors.  When Arizona data is not available, U.S. average is used. Arizona 
data is from Arizona Office of Economic Opportunity. (n.d.) Average Hours and Earnings: All Employees. Retrieved from 
https://www.azcommerce.com/media/1546019/ces-allemp-04st-2020.pdf.  U.S. data is from U.S. Bureau or Labor Statistics. 
(n.d.)  Table B-2. Average weekly hours and overtime of all employees on private nonfarm payrolls by industry sector, seasonally 
adjusted. Retrieved from https://www.bls.gov/news.release/empsit.t18.htm. 
8 Arizona Commerce Authority.  (Sept. 17, 2020).  Monthly Employment Report for August 2020.  Retrieved from  
https://www.azcommerce.com/oeo. 

16 of 69



5 

lowest (5.2%). This suggests local consideration of employment opportunities when imputing income.  
Judges may be directed to use state labor market data as a resource. 

TREATMENT OF CHILD-RELATED TAX BENEFITS 
Exhibit 2 show the preliminary frequencies of different allocations of the child-related tax benefits: that 
is, claiming the children as dependents.  Although the IRS no longer provides a tax allowance for minor 
children there may be child-related tax benefits due to the EITC, the child tax credit, and the additional 
child tax credit.  The maximum EITC varies by the number of children but is generally about $3,500 to 
about $6,500 per year. (The EITC parameters are updated each year for inflation.) The maximum EITC is 
reached at incomes between about $20,000 -$26,000 per year and gradually phased out by incomes of 
about $40,000 to $50,000 per year depending on the number of children.  The child tax credit is $2,000 
per year and available to incomes below $200,000 per year if filing as a head-of-household.  The 
additional child tax credit is essentially a negative income tax credit for those whose federal income tax 
liability is below the $2,000 per child per year amount level. 

EXHIBIT 2:  FREQUENCIES OF TAX ALLOCATIONS BY NUMBER OF CHILDREN, INCOMES, AND TIMESHARING 
ARRANGEMENT (PRELIMINARY) 

Allocated 
to 

Father 

Allocated 
to 

Mother 

Split  
between 
Parents 

Rotated 
Every Other 

Year 

Other 
Rotation Other 

No Provision 
in Court 
Order 

All (n=712) 7% 11% 30% 40% 2% 4% 7% 

Number of Children 
 1 Child (n=387)
 2 Children (n=230)
 3 Children (n=68)
 4 or more (n=27)

8% 
5% 
9% 
4% 

11% 
12% 
 9% 
 7% 

  4%* 
63% 
50%* 
67% 

68% 
 6% 
6% 
5% 

2% 
2% 
2% 
7% 

<1% 
  5% 
18% 
  7% 

6% 
7% 
7% 
2% 

Primary Residential Parent 
 Father (n=73)
 Mother (n=460)
 Equal (n=175)
 Other (n=4)

38% 
 4% 
 3% 
 0% 

  3% 
15% 
 4% 
50% 

19% 
26% 
45% 
 0% 

29% 
43% 
37% 
 0% 

0% 
2% 
3% 
0% 

3% 
3% 
4% 
0% 

 8% 
 7% 
 3% 
50% 

Mother’s Monthly Income 
when Mother is Primary 
Resident (n=460) 
 $0 (n=7)
 $1- $2,000 (n=180)
 $2,001 - $3,000 (n=121)
 $3,001 - $5,000 (n=98)
 $5,001+ (n=54)

14% 
6% 
2% 
2% 
2% 

14% 
12% 
21% 
10% 
19% 

14% 
22% 
30% 
31% 
28% 

43% 
46% 
40% 
45% 
37% 

0% 
2% 
1% 
0% 
2% 

0% 
3% 
2% 
4% 
6% 

14% 
 8% 
 4% 
 8% 
 7% 

*CPR is still checking the data on some of these provisions that do not seem sensible.  Nonetheless, some are valid.  For example, although child 
support is ordered for 1 child, the parents also have an older, emancipated child for whom they claim as a dependent.’’ 

17 of 69



6 

There are several conclusions that can be made from Exhibit 2. 
 It suggests that most (70%) parents split or rotate claiming the child.  Rotating is more common

when there is one child, and splitting is more common when there are more children.
 With the exception of when the father is the primary residential parent, the majority of parents

split or rotate claiming the children regardless if the mother is the primary residential parent or
the parents are equal residential parents.

 Even when considering the income of the mother (who is usually the lower income party and
may be more likely to be eligible for the EITC or additional child tax credit), most parties split or
rotate claiming the children.

DEVIATION REASONS INCLUDING ROUND-OFF 
Deviations were recorded if they were clearly stated in the order.  The preliminary guidelines deviation 
rate is 34%.  Most orders state that the reason for the guidelines deviation was it was “appropriate or 
just” or/and “in the best interest of the child.”  A few orders noted they rounded the worksheet order 
amount even though they are not required to explain that they rounded. 

When deviations with small difference between the order amount and the guidelines amounts are 
excluded, the guidelines deviation rate would be 29% instead of 34%. A small difference was defined as 
when the court order amount is less than five percent and less than $50 per month than the guidelines-
calculated order. The deviation rates for the last two reviews were both 26%. 

PARENTING TIME ADJUSTMENTS AND DEVIATIONS 
Preliminary analysis of court data finds that parenting time adjustments were considered in 83% of the 
2018 sampled worksheets.  The comparable 2013 and 2007 percentages were 84 and 88%, respectively.  
Preliminary analysis finds that those without parenting-time adjustments in the 2018 sample are more 
likely to be low income, have income imputed to one or both parents, and have the self-support reserve 
apply. 

Exhibit 3 examines the number of days used in the guidelines calculation.  For those that checked 
“essentially equal,” CPR assumed that each parent had the child for 182.5 overnights.  

18 of 69



7 

The above exhibit is limited to those with a parenting-time adjustment in the worksheet to make it 
comparable with earlier samples.  It shows that 31% of those with a parenting-time adjustment in the 
guidelines worksheet had essentially equal timesharing.  When all sampled cases are considered, the 
percentage noting “essentially equal” as the primary residence of the child was 25% in the 2018 sample. 
(This is box that appears near the top of the worksheet).  The percentage of all sampled worksheets 
were the lines for essentially equal parenting time were populated was 23%.  The comparable 
percentages from 2013 and 2017 were 21% and 15%, respectively.  The difference between 23% and 
25% resulted from various reasons. For example, some of the worksheet users appeared to skip the 
essentially equal calculation because they evidently decided to deviate to zero.  In other words, in some 
instances, guidelines users skipped worksheet lines. 

Exhibit 4 shows the preliminary deviation rates by the number of days considered in the guidelines 
calculation.  In general, the more days with the obligated parent, the higher deviation rate.  There are 
some notable exceptions, however.  For example, the deviation rate is low among those with 163-172 
days, but as shown in Exhibit 3, this occurs in a small percentage of sampled orders. 

The other thing to note from Exhibit 4 is the difference in the deviation rate adjusted and not adjusted 
for rounding off.  The difference is low among those with essentially equal custody (173-182.5 days), 
which suggests few are deviating for round off.  In contrast, those orders involving obligated parents 
with 21-38 days appear to be deviated more due to round off, as noted by the large difference between 
a 34% deviation rate and 21% deviation rate. 

19 of 69



8 

INCOME DEDUCTIONS FOR OTHER CHILDREN 

Committee member, Janet 
Sell, requested information 
on the frequency that income 
deductions were made for 
the “support of other natural 
or adopted children not 
ordered support.”  The 
adjustment is shown in the 
excerpted 2020 worksheet to 
the right.   

o The adjustment was made for:
o 5% of fathers; and
o 7% of mothers.

20 of 69



9 

SIDE-BY-SIDE COMPARISONS OF EXISTING AND PROPOSED BR5  UPDATE 
Side-by-side comparisons are at the end of this document. It notes the percentage change in the basic 
obligation: that is, the amount owed by both parents before proration and considering of parent days.  

For the purposes of modification, at least a 15% difference between the existing amount and the 
guidelines-applied amount is considered evidence of substantial and continuing change of 
circumstances. 

The BR5 schedule amounts are slightly different than amounts in earlier materials because they have 
been updated to August 2020 price levels. 

COLOR-CODING OF AREA AFFECTED BY THE SELF-SUPPORT RESERVE (SSR)  IN PROPOSED CHANGES  
The area that would be eligible for the self-support reserve is shaded in yellow. 

The SSR is 80% of State minimum wage. 
 2020 SSR = $1,664

o (min. wage of $12.00/hr = $2,080/mo; 80% of $2,080 = $1,664)
 2021 SSR = $1,685

o (min. wage of $12.15/hr = $2,106/mo; 80% of $2,106 = $1,685)

21 of 69



W
or

ki
ng

 D
ra

ft
 (S

ep
t. 

24
, 2

02
0)

Si
de

-b
y-

Si
de

 C
om

pa
ris

on
s

Combined Gross Income

Existing

BR5

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

75
0

17
4

15
9

-1
4

-8
%

25
5

24
3

-1
2

-5
%

30
3

29
3

-9
-3

%
31

2
32

8
16

5%
37

2
36

0
-1

2
-3

%
40

4
39

2
-1

3
-3

%
80

0
18

5
17

0
-1

6
-8

%
27

1
25

8
-1

3
-5

%
32

3
31

2
-1

0
-3

%
36

0
34

9
-1

1
-3

%
39

6
38

4
-1

3
-3

%
43

1
41

7
-1

4
-3

%
85

0
19

6
18

0
-1

6
-8

%
28

7
27

4
-1

3
-4

%
34

1
33

1
-1

0
-3

%
38

1
37

0
-1

1
-3

%
41

9
40

7
-1

2
-3

%
45

6
44

3
-1

3
-3

%
90

0
20

6
19

0
-1

5
-8

%
30

1
29

0
-1

1
-4

%
35

8
35

1
-7

-2
%

39
9

39
2

-8
-2

%
43

9
43

1
-9

-2
%

47
8

46
8

-1
0

-2
%

95
0

21
6

20
1

-1
5

-7
%

31
5

30
6

-9
-3

%
37

4
37

0
-5

-1
%

41
8

41
3

-5
-1

%
46

0
45

4
-6

-1
%

50
0

49
4

-6
-1

%
10

00
22

5
21

1
-1

4
-6

%
32

9
32

1
-8

-2
%

39
1

38
9

-2
-1

%
43

6
43

4
-2

-1
%

48
0

47
7

-3
-1

%
52

2
51

9
-3

-1
%

10
50

23
5

22
1

-1
4

-6
%

34
3

33
7

-7
-2

%
40

7
40

7
0

0%
45

5
45

4
0

0%
50

0
50

0
0

0%
54

4
54

3
0

0%
11

00
24

5
23

0
-1

5
-6

%
35

7
35

1
-7

-2
%

42
4

42
4

0
0%

47
3

47
3

0
0%

52
1

52
1

0
0%

56
6

56
6

0
0%

11
50

25
5

23
9

-1
5

-6
%

37
1

36
5

-7
-2

%
44

0
44

1
1

0%
49

2
49

2
1

0%
54

1
54

2
1

0%
58

8
58

9
1

0%
12

00
26

4
24

9
-1

6
-6

%
38

5
37

9
-7

-2
%

45
7

45
8

1
0%

51
0

51
1

1
0%

56
1

56
2

1
0%

61
0

61
1

1
0%

12
50

27
4

25
8

-1
6

-6
%

39
9

39
3

-7
-2

%
47

3
47

5
1

0%
52

8
53

0
2

0%
58

1
58

3
2

0%
63

2
63

4
2

0%
13

00
28

4
26

7
-1

7
-6

%
41

4
40

7
-7

-2
%

49
0

49
1

2
0%

54
7

54
9

2
0%

60
2

60
4

2
0%

65
4

65
6

2
0%

13
50

29
3

27
6

-1
7

-6
%

42
8

42
1

-7
-2

%
50

6
50

8
2

0%
56

5
56

8
3

0%
62

2
62

5
3

0%
67

6
67

9
3

0%
14

00
30

3
28

5
-1

8
-6

%
44

2
43

5
-7

-2
%

52
3

52
5

3
1%

58
4

58
7

3
1%

64
2

64
5

3
1%

69
8

70
2

4
1%

14
50

31
3

29
5

-1
8

-6
%

45
6

44
9

-7
-2

%
53

9
54

2
3

1%
60

2
60

6
3

1%
66

2
66

6
4

1%
72

0
72

4
4

1%
15

00
32

3
30

4
-1

9
-6

%
47

0
46

3
-7

-2
%

55
6

55
9

3
1%

62
1

62
5

4
1%

68
3

68
7

4
1%

74
2

74
7

5
1%

15
50

33
2

31
3

-1
9

-6
%

48
4

47
7

-7
-1

%
57

2
57

6
4

1%
63

9
64

3
4

1%
70

3
70

8
5

1%
76

4
76

9
5

1%
16

00
34

2
32

2
-2

0
-6

%
49

8
49

1
-7

-1
%

58
9

59
3

4
1%

65
7

66
2

5
1%

72
3

72
9

5
1%

78
6

79
2

6
1%

16
50

35
1

33
1

-2
0

-6
%

51
1

50
4

-7
-1

%
60

4
61

0
6

1%
67

5
68

1
6

1%
74

2
74

9
7

1%
80

7
81

5
8

1%
17

00
36

0
34

0
-2

0
-6

%
52

4
51

8
-6

-1
%

62
0

62
7

7
1%

69
2

70
0

8
1%

76
1

77
0

9
1%

82
8

83
7

10
1%

17
50

36
9

35
0

-2
0

-5
%

53
7

53
2

-5
-1

%
63

5
64

4
9

1%
70

9
71

9
10

1%
78

0
79

1
11

1%
84

8
86

0
12

1%
18

00
37

9
35

9
-2

0
-5

%
55

1
54

6
-4

-1
%

65
1

66
1

10
2%

72
7

73
8

11
2%

79
9

81
2

12
2%

86
9

88
2

13
2%

18
50

38
8

36
8

-2
0

-5
%

56
4

56
0

-3
-1

%
66

6
67

8
12

2%
74

4
75

7
13

2%
81

8
83

2
14

2%
88

9
90

5
15

2%
19

00
39

7
37

7
-2

0
-5

%
57

7
57

4
-3

0%
68

1
69

4
13

2%
76

1
77

5
14

2%
83

7
85

3
16

2%
91

0
92

7
17

2%
19

50
40

6
38

6
-2

0
-5

%
59

0
58

8
-2

0%
69

7
71

1
14

2%
77

8
79

4
15

2%
85

6
87

3
17

2%
93

1
94

9
18

2%
20

00
41

5
39

5
-2

0
-5

%
60

3
60

1
-2

0%
71

2
72

7
15

2%
79

6
81

2
16

2%
87

5
89

3
18

2%
95

1
97

1
20

2%
20

50
42

4
40

4
-2

0
-5

%
61

6
61

5
-1

0%
72

7
74

4
16

2%
81

2
83

1
18

2%
89

4
91

4
20

2%
97

1
99

3
22

2%
21

00
43

3
41

3
-2

0
-5

%
62

9
62

9
0

0%
74

2
76

0
18

2%
82

9
84

9
20

2%
91

2
93

4
22

2%
99

1
10

15
24

2%
21

50
44

2
42

2
-2

0
-4

%
64

1
64

2
1

0%
75

7
77

7
20

3%
84

5
86

7
22

3%
93

0
95

4
24

3%
10

11
10

37
26

3%
22

00
45

0
43

1
-2

0
-4

%
65

4
65

6
2

0%
77

2
79

3
21

3%
86

2
88

6
24

3%
94

8
97

4
26

3%
10

31
10

59
29

3%
22

50
45

9
44

0
-2

0
-4

%
66

7
67

0
3

0%
78

6
81

0
23

3%
87

8
90

4
26

3%
96

6
99

5
28

3%
10

50
10

81
31

3%
23

00
46

8
44

9
-1

9
-4

%
67

9
68

3
4

1%
80

1
82

6
25

3%
89

5
92

3
28

3%
98

4
10

15
31

3%
10

70
11

03
33

3%
23

50
47

7
45

8
-1

9
-4

%
69

2
69

7
5

1%
81

6
84

2
27

3%
91

1
94

1
30

3%
10

03
10

35
33

3%
10

90
11

25
35

3%
24

00
48

6
46

7
-1

9
-4

%
70

5
71

1
6

1%
83

1
85

9
28

3%
92

8
95

9
32

3%
10

21
10

55
35

3%
11

09
11

47
38

3%
24

50
49

5
47

6
-1

9
-4

%
71

7
72

4
7

1%
84

5
87

5
30

4%
94

4
97

8
34

4%
10

39
10

76
37

4%
11

29
11

69
40

4%

6 
Ch

ild
re

n
1 

Ch
ild

2 
Ch

ild
re

n
3 

Ch
ild

re
n

4 
Ch

ild
re

n
5 

Ch
ild

re
n

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 1
/2

0

22 of 69



W
or

ki
ng

 D
ra

ft
 (S

ep
t. 

24
, 2

02
0)

Si
de

-b
y-

Si
de

 C
om

pa
ris

on
s

Combined Gross Income

Existing

BR5

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

6 
Ch

ild
re

n
1 

Ch
ild

2 
Ch

ild
re

n
3 

Ch
ild

re
n

4 
Ch

ild
re

n
5 

Ch
ild

re
n

25
00

50
3

48
5

-1
9

-4
%

73
0

73
8

8
1%

86
0

89
2

32
4%

96
1

99
6

35
4%

10
57

10
96

39
4%

11
49

11
91

42
4%

25
50

51
2

49
4

-1
9

-4
%

74
2

75
1

9
1%

87
5

90
8

33
4%

97
7

10
15

37
4%

10
75

11
16

41
4%

11
69

12
13

45
4%

26
00

52
1

50
2

-1
9

-4
%

75
5

76
5

10
1%

89
0

92
5

35
4%

99
4

10
33

39
4%

10
93

11
36

43
4%

11
88

12
35

47
4%

26
50

53
0

51
1

-1
8

-3
%

76
8

77
9

11
1%

90
5

94
1

37
4%

10
10

10
52

41
4%

11
11

11
57

45
4%

12
08

12
57

49
4%

27
00

53
9

52
0

-1
8

-3
%

78
0

79
2

12
2%

91
9

95
8

39
4%

10
27

10
70

43
4%

11
30

11
77

47
4%

12
28

12
79

52
4%

27
50

54
7

52
9

-1
8

-3
%

79
3

80
6

13
2%

93
4

97
4

40
4%

10
43

10
88

45
4%

11
48

11
97

50
4%

12
48

13
01

54
4%

28
00

55
6

53
8

-1
8

-3
%

80
6

82
0

14
2%

94
9

99
1

42
4%

10
60

11
07

47
4%

11
66

12
18

52
4%

12
67

13
23

56
4%

28
50

56
5

54
7

-1
8

-3
%

81
8

83
3

15
2%

96
4

10
07

44
5%

10
76

11
25

49
5%

11
84

12
38

54
5%

12
87

13
45

58
5%

29
00

57
4

55
6

-1
8

-3
%

83
1

84
7

16
2%

97
8

10
24

46
5%

10
93

11
44

51
5%

12
02

12
58

56
5%

13
07

13
67

61
5%

29
50

58
3

56
5

-1
8

-3
%

84
4

86
1

17
2%

99
3

10
40

47
5%

11
09

11
62

53
5%

12
20

12
78

58
5%

13
26

13
89

63
5%

30
00

59
2

57
4

-1
8

-3
%

85
7

87
4

17
2%

10
08

10
57

48
5%

11
26

11
80

54
5%

12
39

12
98

59
5%

13
47

14
11

64
5%

30
50

60
1

58
3

-1
8

-3
%

87
0

88
8

18
2%

10
24

10
73

49
5%

11
44

11
98

55
5%

12
58

13
18

60
5%

13
67

14
33

66
5%

31
00

61
0

59
2

-1
8

-3
%

88
3

90
1

18
2%

10
39

10
89

50
5%

11
61

12
17

56
5%

12
77

13
38

62
5%

13
88

14
55

67
5%

31
50

61
9

60
1

-1
8

-3
%

89
6

91
5

19
2%

10
55

11
06

51
5%

11
78

12
35

57
5%

12
96

13
58

63
5%

14
09

14
77

68
5%

32
00

62
8

60
9

-1
8

-3
%

90
9

92
8

19
2%

10
70

11
22

52
5%

11
95

12
53

58
5%

13
15

13
79

64
5%

14
29

14
98

69
5%

32
50

63
7

61
8

-1
8

-3
%

92
2

94
2

20
2%

10
85

11
38

53
5%

12
12

12
71

59
5%

13
34

13
99

65
5%

14
50

15
20

71
5%

33
00

64
6

62
7

-1
8

-3
%

93
5

95
5

20
2%

11
01

11
55

54
5%

12
30

12
90

60
5%

13
53

14
19

66
5%

14
70

15
42

72
5%

33
50

65
5

63
6

-1
8

-3
%

94
8

96
8

20
2%

11
16

11
70

53
5%

12
47

13
07

60
5%

13
72

14
37

66
5%

14
91

15
62

71
5%

34
00

66
3

64
5

-1
9

-3
%

96
1

98
0

19
2%

11
32

11
83

51
5%

12
64

13
22

57
5%

13
91

14
54

63
5%

15
12

15
80

69
5%

34
50

67
2

65
4

-1
9

-3
%

97
4

99
1

18
2%

11
47

11
97

49
4%

12
81

13
37

55
4%

14
09

14
70

61
4%

15
32

15
98

66
4%

35
00

68
1

66
3

-1
9

-3
%

98
7

10
03

16
2%

11
63

12
10

47
4%

12
99

13
52

53
4%

14
28

14
87

58
4%

15
53

16
16

63
4%

35
50

69
0

67
2

-1
9

-3
%

10
00

10
15

15
1%

11
78

12
23

45
4%

13
16

13
67

51
4%

14
47

15
03

56
4%

15
73

16
34

61
4%

36
00

69
9

68
0

-1
9

-3
%

10
13

10
26

14
1%

11
93

12
37

43
4%

13
33

13
82

49
4%

14
66

15
20

53
4%

15
94

16
52

58
4%

36
50

70
8

68
9

-1
9

-3
%

10
26

10
38

12
1%

12
09

12
50

41
3%

13
50

13
96

46
3%

14
85

15
36

51
3%

16
14

16
70

55
3%

37
00

71
7

69
8

-1
9

-3
%

10
39

10
50

11
1%

12
24

12
64

39
3%

13
67

14
11

44
3%

15
04

15
53

48
3%

16
35

16
88

53
3%

37
50

72
6

70
7

-1
9

-3
%

10
52

10
62

10
1%

12
40

12
77

37
3%

13
85

14
26

42
3%

15
23

15
69

46
3%

16
56

17
06

50
3%

38
00

73
5

71
6

-1
9

-3
%

10
65

10
73

8
1%

12
55

12
90

35
3%

14
02

14
41

40
3%

15
42

15
86

43
3%

16
76

17
24

47
3%

38
50

74
4

72
5

-1
9

-3
%

10
78

10
85

7
1%

12
70

13
04

33
3%

14
19

14
56

37
3%

15
61

16
02

41
3%

16
97

17
41

45
3%

39
00

75
3

73
3

-2
0

-3
%

10
91

10
97

6
1%

12
86

13
18

32
3%

14
36

14
72

36
3%

15
80

16
20

40
3%

17
17

17
60

43
3%

39
50

76
0

74
1

-1
9

-2
%

11
01

11
10

9
1%

12
97

13
34

36
3%

14
49

14
90

40
3%

15
94

16
39

44
3%

17
33

17
81

48
3%

40
00

76
5

74
9

-1
6

-2
%

11
08

11
23

15
1%

13
06

13
49

43
3%

14
58

15
07

48
3%

16
04

16
58

53
3%

17
44

18
02

58
3%

40
50

77
1

75
7

-1
3

-2
%

11
15

11
37

21
2%

13
14

13
65

51
4%

14
68

15
24

57
4%

16
14

16
77

62
4%

17
55

18
23

68
4%

41
00

77
6

76
5

-1
0

-1
%

11
23

11
50

27
2%

13
22

13
80

58
4%

14
77

15
42

65
4%

16
25

16
96

71
4%

17
66

18
43

77
4%

41
50

78
1

77
3

-8
-1

%
11

30
11

63
33

3%
13

30
13

96
65

5%
14

86
15

59
73

5%
16

35
17

15
80

5%
17

77
18

64
87

5%

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 2
/2

0

23 of 69



W
or

ki
ng

 D
ra

ft
 (S

ep
t. 

24
, 2

02
0)

Si
de

-b
y-

Si
de

 C
om

pa
ris

on
s

Combined Gross Income

Existing

BR5

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

6 
Ch

ild
re

n
1 

Ch
ild

2 
Ch

ild
re

n
3 

Ch
ild

re
n

4 
Ch

ild
re

n
5 

Ch
ild

re
n

42
00

78
6

78
1

-5
-1

%
11

37
11

76
39

3%
13

39
14

11
72

5%
14

95
15

76
81

5%
16

45
17

34
89

5%
17

88
18

85
97

5%
42

50
79

1
78

9
-2

0%
11

44
11

89
45

4%
13

47
14

27
80

6%
15

04
15

93
89

6%
16

55
17

53
98

6%
17

99
19

05
10

6
6%

43
00

79
6

79
8

1
0%

11
52

12
02

50
4%

13
55

14
42

87
6%

15
14

16
11

97
6%

16
65

17
72

10
7

6%
18

10
19

26
11

6
6%

43
50

80
2

80
6

4
0%

11
59

12
15

56
5%

13
63

14
57

94
7%

15
23

16
28

10
5

7%
16

75
17

91
11

6
7%

18
21

19
47

12
6

7%
44

00
80

7
81

3
6

1%
11

66
12

27
61

5%
13

71
14

72
10

1
7%

15
32

16
44

11
2

7%
16

85
18

09
12

4
7%

18
32

19
66

13
4

7%
44

50
81

2
82

0
8

1%
11

73
12

38
65

6%
13

79
14

84
10

5
8%

15
41

16
58

11
7

8%
16

95
18

24
12

9
8%

18
42

19
83

14
0

8%
45

00
81

7
82

5
8

1%
11

80
12

46
66

6%
13

88
14

94
10

7
8%

15
50

16
69

11
9

8%
17

05
18

36
13

1
8%

18
53

19
96

14
3

8%
45

50
82

2
83

1
9

1%
11

88
12

55
67

6%
13

96
15

05
10

9
8%

15
59

16
81

12
1

8%
17

15
18

49
13

4
8%

18
64

20
09

14
5

8%
46

00
82

7
83

7
9

1%
11

95
12

63
69

6%
14

04
15

15
11

1
8%

15
68

16
92

12
4

8%
17

25
18

61
13

6
8%

18
75

20
23

14
8

8%
46

50
83

3
84

2
10

1%
12

02
12

72
70

6%
14

12
15

25
11

3
8%

15
77

17
03

12
6

8%
17

35
18

73
13

8
8%

18
86

20
36

15
0

8%
47

00
83

8
84

8
10

1%
12

09
12

80
71

6%
14

20
15

35
11

4
8%

15
86

17
14

12
8

8%
17

45
18

86
14

1
8%

18
97

20
50

15
3

8%
47

50
84

3
85

4
11

1%
12

16
12

89
72

6%
14

28
15

45
11

6
8%

15
96

17
25

13
0

8%
17

55
18

98
14

3
8%

19
08

20
63

15
5

8%
48

00
84

8
85

9
11

1%
12

24
12

97
74

6%
14

37
15

55
11

8
8%

16
05

17
37

13
2

8%
17

65
19

10
14

5
8%

19
19

20
77

15
8

8%
48

50
85

3
86

5
12

1%
12

31
13

06
75

6%
14

45
15

65
12

0
8%

16
14

17
48

13
4

8%
17

75
19

23
14

8
8%

19
30

20
90

16
0

8%
49

00
85

8
87

1
13

1%
12

38
13

14
76

6%
14

53
15

75
12

2
8%

16
23

17
59

13
6

8%
17

85
19

35
15

0
8%

19
40

21
03

16
3

8%
49

50
86

3
87

6
13

2%
12

45
13

23
78

6%
14

61
15

85
12

4
8%

16
32

17
70

13
8

8%
17

95
19

47
15

2
8%

19
51

21
17

16
6

8%
50

00
86

9
88

2
14

2%
12

52
13

31
79

6%
14

69
15

95
12

6
9%

16
41

17
82

14
1

9%
18

05
19

60
15

5
9%

19
62

21
30

16
8

9%
50

50
87

4
88

8
14

2%
12

59
13

40
80

6%
14

77
16

05
12

8
9%

16
50

17
93

14
3

9%
18

15
19

72
15

7
9%

19
73

21
44

17
1

9%
51

00
87

7
89

2
15

2%
12

65
13

46
81

6%
14

83
16

12
12

9
9%

16
57

18
01

14
4

9%
18

22
19

81
15

8
9%

19
81

21
53

17
2

9%
51

50
88

1
89

6
14

2%
12

70
13

51
81

6%
14

89
16

18
12

8
9%

16
64

18
07

14
3

9%
18

30
19

88
15

8
9%

19
89

21
61

17
1

9%
52

00
88

5
89

9
14

2%
12

75
13

56
81

6%
14

95
16

23
12

8
9%

16
70

18
13

14
3

9%
18

37
19

95
15

7
9%

19
97

21
68

17
1

9%
52

50
88

9
90

2
14

2%
12

81
13

61
80

6%
15

02
16

29
12

7
8%

16
77

18
20

14
2

8%
18

45
20

02
15

7
8%

20
05

21
76

17
0

8%
53

00
89

2
90

6
14

2%
12

86
13

66
80

6%
15

08
16

35
12

7
8%

16
84

18
26

14
2

8%
18

52
20

08
15

6
8%

20
14

21
83

17
0

8%
53

50
89

6
90

9
13

1%
12

91
13

71
80

6%
15

14
16

40
12

7
8%

16
91

18
32

14
1

8%
18

60
20

15
15

5
8%

20
22

21
91

16
9

8%
54

00
90

0
91

3
13

1%
12

96
13

76
79

6%
15

20
16

46
12

6
8%

16
98

18
38

14
1

8%
18

67
20

22
15

5
8%

20
30

21
98

16
8

8%
54

50
90

3
91

6
13

1%
13

02
13

81
79

6%
15

26
16

52
12

6
8%

17
04

18
45

14
0

8%
18

75
20

29
15

4
8%

20
38

22
06

16
8

8%
55

00
90

7
92

0
13

1%
13

07
13

86
79

6%
15

32
16

57
12

5
8%

17
11

18
51

14
0

8%
18

82
20

36
15

4
8%

20
46

22
13

16
7

8%
55

50
91

1
92

3
12

1%
13

12
13

91
78

6%
15

38
16

63
12

5
8%

17
18

18
57

13
9

8%
18

90
20

43
15

3
8%

20
54

22
21

16
6

8%
56

00
91

5
92

7
12

1%
13

18
13

96
78

6%
15

44
16

68
12

4
8%

17
25

18
64

13
9

8%
18

97
20

50
15

3
8%

20
63

22
28

16
6

8%
56

50
91

8
93

0
12

1%
13

23
14

00
78

6%
15

50
16

74
12

4
8%

17
32

18
70

13
8

8%
19

05
20

57
15

2
8%

20
71

22
36

16
5

8%
57

00
92

2
93

4
11

1%
13

28
14

05
77

6%
15

56
16

80
12

3
8%

17
39

18
76

13
8

8%
19

12
20

64
15

1
8%

20
79

22
43

16
5

8%
57

50
92

6
93

7
11

1%
13

33
14

09
76

6%
15

63
16

83
12

0
8%

17
45

18
80

13
4

8%
19

20
20

68
14

8
8%

20
87

22
47

16
0

8%
58

00
93

0
94

0
10

1%
13

39
14

13
74

6%
15

69
16

86
11

7
7%

17
52

18
83

13
1

7%
19

27
20

71
14

4
7%

20
95

22
51

15
6

7%
58

50
93

3
94

3
10

1%
13

44
14

16
72

5%
15

75
16

89
11

4
7%

17
59

18
86

12
7

7%
19

35
20

75
14

0
7%

21
03

22
55

15
2

7%

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 3
/2

0

24 of 69



W
or

ki
ng

 D
ra

ft
 (S

ep
t. 

24
, 2

02
0)

Si
de

-b
y-

Si
de

 C
om

pa
ris

on
s

Combined Gross Income

Existing

BR5

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

6 
Ch

ild
re

n
1 

Ch
ild

2 
Ch

ild
re

n
3 

Ch
ild

re
n

4 
Ch

ild
re

n
5 

Ch
ild

re
n

59
00

93
7

94
6

9
1%

13
49

14
20

71
5%

15
81

16
91

11
1

7%
17

66
18

89
12

4
7%

19
42

20
78

13
6

7%
21

11
22

59
14

8
7%

59
50

94
1

94
9

8
1%

13
54

14
23

69
5%

15
87

16
94

10
7

7%
17

73
18

93
12

0
7%

19
50

20
82

13
2

7%
21

20
22

63
14

3
7%

60
00

94
4

95
2

8
1%

13
60

14
27

67
5%

15
93

16
97

10
4

7%
17

79
18

96
11

6
7%

19
57

20
85

12
8

7%
21

28
22

67
13

9
7%

60
50

94
8

95
5

7
1%

13
65

14
31

66
5%

15
99

17
00

10
1

6%
17

86
18

99
11

3
6%

19
65

20
89

12
4

6%
21

36
22

71
13

5
6%

61
00

95
2

95
8

7
1%

13
70

14
34

64
5%

16
05

17
03

98
6%

17
93

19
02

10
9

6%
19

72
20

93
12

0
6%

21
44

22
75

13
1

6%
61

50
95

6
96

2
6

1%
13

76
14

38
62

5%
16

11
17

06
95

6%
18

00
19

06
10

6
6%

19
80

20
96

11
6

6%
21

52
22

79
12

6
6%

62
00

95
9

96
5

6
1%

13
80

14
41

61
4%

16
16

17
09

93
6%

18
05

19
09

10
3

6%
19

86
21

00
11

4
6%

21
59

22
83

12
4

6%
62

50
96

2
96

8
6

1%
13

84
14

45
61

4%
16

20
17

12
91

6%
18

10
19

12
10

2
6%

19
91

21
03

11
2

6%
21

64
22

86
12

2
6%

63
00

96
5

97
1

6
1%

13
88

14
48

61
4%

16
25

17
15

90
6%

18
15

19
15

10
1

6%
19

96
21

07
11

1
6%

21
70

22
90

12
1

6%
63

50
96

8
97

4
7

1%
13

92
14

53
61

4%
16

29
17

19
90

6%
18

19
19

20
10

1
6%

20
01

21
12

11
1

6%
21

75
22

96
12

1
6%

64
00

97
1

97
9

8
1%

13
95

14
60

65
5%

16
33

17
29

96
6%

18
24

19
31

10
7

6%
20

06
21

24
11

8
6%

21
81

23
09

12
8

6%
64

50
97

3
98

3
9

1%
13

99
14

67
68

5%
16

37
17

38
10

2
6%

18
28

19
42

11
3

6%
20

11
21

36
12

5
6%

21
86

23
22

13
6

6%
65

00
97

6
98

7
11

1%
14

03
14

75
72

5%
16

41
17

48
10

7
7%

18
33

19
53

12
0

7%
20

16
21

48
13

2
7%

21
92

23
35

14
3

7%
65

50
97

9
99

2
12

1%
14

07
14

82
75

5%
16

45
17

58
11

3
7%

18
37

19
63

12
6

7%
20

21
21

60
13

9
7%

21
97

23
48

15
1

7%
66

00
98

2
99

6
14

1%
14

11
14

89
79

6%
16

49
17

67
11

8
7%

18
42

19
74

13
2

7%
20

26
21

72
14

5
7%

22
03

23
61

15
8

7%
66

50
98

5
10

00
15

2%
14

15
14

97
82

6%
16

53
17

77
12

4
7%

18
47

19
85

13
8

7%
20

31
21

84
15

2
7%

22
08

23
74

16
6

7%
67

00
98

8
10

05
17

2%
14

18
15

04
85

6%
16

57
17

87
13

0
8%

18
51

19
96

14
5

8%
20

36
21

95
15

9
8%

22
13

23
86

17
3

8%
67

50
99

1
10

09
18

2%
14

22
15

11
89

6%
16

61
17

97
13

5
8%

18
56

20
07

15
1

8%
20

41
22

07
16

6
8%

22
19

23
99

18
1

8%
68

00
99

4
10

13
20

2%
14

26
15

19
92

6%
16

65
18

06
14

1
8%

18
60

20
18

15
7

8%
20

46
22

19
17

3
8%

22
24

24
12

18
8

8%
68

50
99

7
10

18
21

2%
14

30
15

26
96

7%
16

70
18

16
14

6
9%

18
65

20
28

16
3

9%
20

51
22

31
18

0
9%

22
30

24
25

19
5

9%
69

00
10

00
10

22
22

2%
14

34
15

33
99

7%
16

74
18

26
15

2
9%

18
69

20
39

17
0

9%
20

56
22

43
18

7
9%

22
35

24
38

20
3

9%
69

50
10

02
10

26
24

2%
14

38
15

40
10

3
7%

16
78

18
35

15
8

9%
18

74
20

50
17

6
9%

20
61

22
55

19
4

9%
22

41
24

51
21

0
9%

70
00

10
05

10
30

25
2%

14
42

15
46

10
5

7%
16

82
18

42
16

0
10

%
18

79
20

58
17

9
10

%
20

66
22

63
19

7
10

%
22

46
24

60
21

4
10

%
70

50
10

08
10

33
24

2%
14

45
15

49
10

4
7%

16
86

18
44

15
9

9%
18

83
20

60
17

7
9%

20
71

22
66

19
5

9%
22

52
24

63
21

2
9%

71
00

10
11

10
35

24
2%

14
49

15
52

10
3

7%
16

90
18

47
15

7
9%

18
88

20
63

17
5

9%
20

77
22

69
19

3
9%

22
57

24
67

21
0

9%
71

50
10

14
10

38
24

2%
14

53
15

55
10

2
7%

16
94

18
49

15
5

9%
18

92
20

66
17

3
9%

20
82

22
72

19
1

9%
22

63
24

70
20

7
9%

72
00

10
17

10
41

24
2%

14
57

15
58

10
1

7%
16

98
18

52
15

4
9%

18
97

20
68

17
2

9%
20

87
22

75
18

9
9%

22
68

24
73

20
5

9%
72

50
10

20
10

43
23

2%
14

61
15

61
10

0
7%

17
02

18
54

15
2

9%
19

01
20

71
17

0
9%

20
92

22
78

18
7

9%
22

74
24

77
20

3
9%

73
00

10
23

10
46

23
2%

14
65

15
64

10
0

7%
17

06
18

57
15

0
9%

19
06

20
74

16
8

9%
20

97
22

81
18

5
9%

22
79

24
80

20
1

9%
73

50
10

24
10

49
24

2%
14

66
15

67
10

1
7%

17
08

18
59

15
1

9%
19

08
20

77
16

9
9%

20
99

22
84

18
6

9%
22

81
24

83
20

2
9%

74
00

10
26

10
51

25
2%

14
68

15
70

10
2

7%
17

10
18

62
15

2
9%

19
10

20
79

16
9

9%
21

01
22

87
18

6
9%

22
84

24
86

20
3

9%
74

50
10

27
10

54
27

3%
14

70
15

73
10

3
7%

17
12

18
64

15
2

9%
19

12
20

82
17

0
9%

21
03

22
90

18
7

9%
22

86
24

90
20

3
9%

75
00

10
29

10
57

28
3%

14
72

15
76

10
4

7%
17

14
18

67
15

3
9%

19
14

20
85

17
1

9%
21

06
22

93
18

8
9%

22
89

24
93

20
4

9%
75

50
10

30
10

59
29

3%
14

74
15

79
10

6
7%

17
16

18
69

15
3

9%
19

16
20

88
17

1
9%

21
08

22
97

18
8

9%
22

91
24

96
20

5
9%

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 4
/2

0

25 of 69



W
or

ki
ng

 D
ra

ft
 (S

ep
t. 

24
, 2

02
0)

Si
de

-b
y-

Si
de

 C
om

pa
ris

on
s

Combined Gross Income

Existing

BR5

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

6 
Ch

ild
re

n
1 

Ch
ild

2 
Ch

ild
re

n
3 

Ch
ild

re
n

4 
Ch

ild
re

n
5 

Ch
ild

re
n

76
00

10
32

10
62

30
3%

14
76

15
82

10
7

7%
17

18
18

72
15

4
9%

19
18

20
90

17
2

9%
21

10
23

00
18

9
9%

22
94

25
00

20
6

9%
76

50
10

33
10

65
32

3%
14

78
15

87
10

9
7%

17
19

18
76

15
6

9%
19

21
20

95
17

4
9%

21
13

23
05

19
2

9%
22

96
25

05
20

9
9%

77
00

10
35

10
69

34
3%

14
79

15
91

11
2

8%
17

21
18

80
15

9
9%

19
23

21
00

17
8

9%
21

15
23

11
19

6
9%

22
99

25
12

21
3

9%
77

50
10

36
10

72
36

4%
14

81
15

96
11

5
8%

17
23

18
85

16
2

9%
19

25
21

06
18

1
9%

21
17

23
17

19
9

9%
23

01
25

18
21

7
9%

78
00

10
38

10
76

38
4%

14
83

16
01

11
8

8%
17

25
18

90
16

5
10

%
19

27
21

11
18

5
10

%
21

19
23

23
20

3
10

%
23

04
25

25
22

1
10

%
78

50
10

39
10

80
41

4%
14

85
16

06
12

1
8%

17
27

18
95

16
8

10
%

19
29

21
17

18
8

10
%

21
22

23
29

20
7

10
%

23
06

25
31

22
5

10
%

79
00

10
41

10
84

43
4%

14
87

16
11

12
4

8%
17

29
19

00
17

1
10

%
19

31
21

22
19

1
10

%
21

24
23

35
21

1
10

%
23

09
25

38
22

9
10

%
79

50
10

42
10

87
45

4%
14

89
16

16
12

7
9%

17
31

19
05

17
4

10
%

19
33

21
28

19
5

10
%

21
26

23
41

21
4

10
%

23
11

25
44

23
3

10
%

80
00

10
44

10
91

47
5%

14
91

16
20

13
0

9%
17

32
19

10
17

7
10

%
19

35
21

33
19

8
10

%
21

29
23

47
21

8
10

%
23

14
25

51
23

7
10

%
80

50
10

45
10

95
49

5%
14

92
16

25
13

3
9%

17
34

19
15

18
0

10
%

19
37

21
39

20
2

10
%

21
31

23
53

22
2

10
%

23
16

25
57

24
1

10
%

81
00

10
47

10
98

52
5%

14
94

16
30

13
6

9%
17

36
19

20
18

3
11

%
19

39
21

44
20

5
11

%
21

33
23

59
22

5
11

%
23

19
25

64
24

5
11

%
81

50
10

48
11

02
54

5%
14

96
16

35
13

9
9%

17
38

19
25

18
6

11
%

19
41

21
50

20
8

11
%

21
36

23
65

22
9

11
%

23
21

25
70

24
9

11
%

82
00

10
50

11
05

56
5%

14
98

16
40

14
2

9%
17

40
19

29
18

9
11

%
19

43
21

55
21

2
11

%
21

38
23

71
23

3
11

%
23

24
25

77
25

3
11

%
82

50
10

51
11

09
58

6%
15

00
16

44
14

4
10

%
17

42
19

34
19

2
11

%
19

46
21

60
21

5
11

%
21

40
23

76
23

6
11

%
23

26
25

83
25

7
11

%
83

00
10

53
11

14
61

6%
15

02
16

51
14

9
10

%
17

44
19

42
19

8
11

%
19

48
21

69
22

1
11

%
21

42
23

86
24

3
11

%
23

29
25

93
26

5
11

%
83

50
10

54
11

19
65

6%
15

04
16

59
15

5
10

%
17

45
19

50
20

5
12

%
19

50
21

78
22

8
12

%
21

45
23

96
25

1
12

%
23

31
26

04
27

3
12

%
84

00
10

55
11

25
69

7%
15

05
16

66
16

1
11

%
17

47
19

58
21

1
12

%
19

52
21

87
23

6
12

%
21

47
24

06
25

9
12

%
23

33
26

15
28

2
12

%
84

50
10

58
11

30
72

7%
15

09
16

74
16

5
11

%
17

51
19

66
21

5
12

%
19

56
21

96
24

0
12

%
21

52
24

16
26

4
12

%
23

39
26

26
28

8
12

%
85

00
10

63
11

35
72

7%
15

16
16

81
16

5
11

%
17

59
19

75
21

6
12

%
19

65
22

06
24

1
12

%
21

61
24

26
26

5
12

%
23

49
26

37
28

8
12

%
85

50
10

68
11

41
73

7%
15

22
16

88
16

6
11

%
17

67
19

83
21

6
12

%
19

73
22

15
24

2
12

%
21

71
24

36
26

6
12

%
23

60
26

48
28

9
12

%
86

00
10

72
11

46
73

7%
15

29
16

96
16

7
11

%
17

74
19

91
21

7
12

%
19

82
22

24
24

2
12

%
21

80
24

47
26

6
12

%
23

70
26

59
28

9
12

%
86

50
10

77
11

51
74

7%
15

36
17

03
16

7
11

%
17

82
19

99
21

7
12

%
19

91
22

33
24

3
12

%
21

90
24

57
26

7
12

%
23

80
26

70
29

0
12

%
87

00
10

82
11

56
74

7%
15

43
17

11
16

8
11

%
17

90
20

08
21

8
12

%
19

99
22

43
24

3
12

%
21

99
24

67
26

7
12

%
23

91
26

81
29

1
12

%
87

50
10

87
11

62
75

7%
15

49
17

18
16

9
11

%
17

98
20

16
21

8
12

%
20

08
22

52
24

4
12

%
22

09
24

77
26

8
12

%
24

01
26

92
29

1
12

%
88

00
10

92
11

67
75

7%
15

56
17

26
17

0
11

%
18

06
20

24
21

9
12

%
20

17
22

61
24

4
12

%
22

18
24

87
26

9
12

%
24

11
27

03
29

2
12

%
88

50
10

96
11

72
76

7%
15

63
17

33
17

0
11

%
18

13
20

32
21

9
12

%
20

25
22

70
24

5
12

%
22

28
24

97
26

9
12

%
24

22
27

14
29

3
12

%
89

00
11

01
11

78
77

7%
15

70
17

41
17

1
11

%
18

21
20

41
22

0
12

%
20

34
22

79
24

5
12

%
22

38
25

07
27

0
12

%
24

32
27

25
29

3
12

%
89

50
11

06
11

83
77

7%
15

76
17

48
17

2
11

%
18

29
20

49
22

0
12

%
20

43
22

89
24

6
12

%
22

47
25

17
27

0
12

%
24

43
27

36
29

4
12

%
90

00
11

11
11

88
78

7%
15

83
17

56
17

2
11

%
18

37
20

57
22

1
12

%
20

51
22

98
24

6
12

%
22

57
25

28
27

1
12

%
24

53
27

47
29

5
12

%
90

50
11

16
11

94
78

7%
15

90
17

63
17

3
11

%
18

44
20

65
22

1
12

%
20

60
23

07
24

7
12

%
22

66
25

38
27

2
12

%
24

63
27

58
29

5
12

%
91

00
11

20
11

99
79

7%
15

97
17

70
17

4
11

%
18

52
20

74
22

2
12

%
20

69
23

16
24

7
12

%
22

76
25

48
27

2
12

%
24

74
27

70
29

6
12

%
91

50
11

25
12

04
79

7%
16

03
17

78
17

4
11

%
18

60
20

82
22

2
12

%
20

77
23

25
24

8
12

%
22

85
25

58
27

3
12

%
24

84
27

81
29

7
12

%
92

00
11

30
12

10
80

7%
16

10
17

85
17

5
11

%
18

68
20

90
22

2
12

%
20

86
23

35
24

9
12

%
22

95
25

68
27

3
12

%
24

94
27

92
29

7
12

%
92

50
11

34
12

15
81

7%
16

16
17

93
17

7
11

%
18

74
20

98
22

5
12

%
20

93
23

44
25

1
12

%
23

02
25

78
27

6
12

%
25

03
28

03
30

0
12

%

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 5
/2

0

26 of 69



W
or

ki
ng

 D
ra

ft
 (S

ep
t. 

24
, 2

02
0)

Si
de

-b
y-

Si
de

 C
om

pa
ris

on
s

Combined Gross Income

Existing

BR5

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

6 
Ch

ild
re

n
1 

Ch
ild

2 
Ch

ild
re

n
3 

Ch
ild

re
n

4 
Ch

ild
re

n
5 

Ch
ild

re
n

93
00

11
37

12
19

82
7%

16
20

17
99

17
9

11
%

18
79

21
07

22
8

12
%

20
99

23
53

25
4

12
%

23
09

25
88

28
0

12
%

25
09

28
14

30
4

12
%

93
50

11
40

12
22

83
7%

16
24

18
05

18
1

11
%

18
84

21
15

23
1

12
%

21
04

23
62

25
8

12
%

23
15

25
99

28
4

12
%

25
16

28
25

30
9

12
%

94
00

11
43

12
26

83
7%

16
29

18
12

18
3

11
%

18
89

21
23

23
4

12
%

21
10

23
72

26
2

12
%

23
21

26
09

28
8

12
%

25
23

28
36

31
3

12
%

94
50

11
46

12
30

84
7%

16
33

18
18

18
5

11
%

18
94

21
32

23
7

13
%

21
16

23
81

26
5

13
%

23
27

26
19

29
2

13
%

25
30

28
47

31
7

13
%

95
00

11
49

12
34

85
7%

16
37

18
25

18
7

11
%

18
99

21
40

24
1

13
%

21
21

23
90

26
9

13
%

23
34

26
29

29
6

13
%

25
37

28
58

32
1

13
%

95
50

11
52

12
38

86
7%

16
42

18
31

18
9

12
%

19
04

21
48

24
4

13
%

21
27

24
00

27
2

13
%

23
40

26
39

30
0

13
%

25
43

28
69

32
6

13
%

96
00

11
55

12
42

87
8%

16
46

18
37

19
1

12
%

19
09

21
56

24
7

13
%

21
33

24
09

27
6

13
%

23
46

26
50

30
4

13
%

25
50

28
80

33
0

13
%

96
50

11
58

12
46

88
8%

16
50

18
44

19
3

12
%

19
14

21
65

25
0

13
%

21
38

24
18

28
0

13
%

23
52

26
60

30
8

13
%

25
57

28
91

33
4

13
%

97
00

11
61

12
50

88
8%

16
55

18
50

19
5

12
%

19
20

21
73

25
4

13
%

21
44

24
27

28
3

13
%

23
58

26
70

31
2

13
%

25
64

29
02

33
9

13
%

97
50

11
64

12
53

89
8%

16
59

18
57

19
7

12
%

19
25

21
81

25
7

13
%

21
50

24
37

28
7

13
%

23
65

26
80

31
6

13
%

25
70

29
13

34
3

13
%

98
00

11
68

12
57

90
8%

16
64

18
63

19
9

12
%

19
30

21
90

26
0

13
%

21
56

24
46

29
0

13
%

23
72

26
91

31
9

13
%

25
78

29
25

34
7

13
%

98
50

11
71

12
61

90
8%

16
69

18
69

20
0

12
%

19
36

21
98

26
2

14
%

21
62

24
55

29
3

14
%

23
79

27
01

32
2

14
%

25
85

29
36

35
0

14
%

99
00

11
74

12
65

91
8%

16
74

18
76

20
2

12
%

19
41

22
06

26
5

14
%

21
69

24
64

29
6

14
%

23
85

27
11

32
6

14
%

25
93

29
47

35
4

14
%

99
50

11
78

12
69

91
8%

16
78

18
82

20
4

12
%

19
47

22
15

26
8

14
%

21
75

24
74

29
9

14
%

23
92

27
21

32
9

14
%

26
00

29
58

35
7

14
%

10
00

0
11

81
12

73
92

8%
16

83
18

88
20

5
12

%
19

53
22

23
27

0
14

%
21

81
24

83
30

2
14

%
23

99
27

31
33

2
14

%
26

08
29

69
36

1
14

%
10

05
0

11
85

12
77

92
8%

16
88

18
95

20
7

12
%

19
58

22
31

27
3

14
%

21
87

24
92

30
5

14
%

24
06

27
42

33
5

14
%

26
15

29
80

36
5

14
%

10
10

0
11

88
12

81
93

8%
16

93
19

01
20

8
12

%
19

64
22

40
27

6
14

%
21

94
25

02
30

8
14

%
24

13
27

52
33

9
14

%
26

23
29

91
36

8
14

%
10

15
0

11
91

12
84

93
8%

16
98

19
08

21
0

12
%

19
69

22
48

27
8

14
%

22
00

25
11

31
1

14
%

24
20

27
62

34
2

14
%

26
30

30
02

37
2

14
%

10
20

0
11

95
12

88
94

8%
17

03
19

14
21

1
12

%
19

75
22

56
28

1
14

%
22

06
25

20
31

4
14

%
24

27
27

72
34

5
14

%
26

38
30

13
37

5
14

%
10

25
0

11
98

12
92

94
8%

17
07

19
20

21
2

12
%

19
81

22
63

28
3

14
%

22
12

25
28

31
6

14
%

24
34

27
81

34
7

14
%

26
45

30
23

37
7

14
%

10
30

0
12

02
12

95
93

8%
17

12
19

24
21

2
12

%
19

86
22

68
28

2
14

%
22

19
25

33
31

5
14

%
24

41
27

86
34

6
14

%
26

53
30

29
37

6
14

%
10

35
0

12
05

12
98

93
8%

17
17

19
28

21
1

12
%

19
92

22
72

28
1

14
%

22
25

25
38

31
4

14
%

24
47

27
92

34
5

14
%

26
60

30
35

37
5

14
%

10
40

0
12

07
13

01
94

8%
17

20
19

32
21

2
12

%
19

96
22

77
28

1
14

%
22

29
25

43
31

4
14

%
24

52
27

98
34

6
14

%
26

65
30

41
37

6
14

%
10

45
0

12
10

13
04

94
8%

17
24

19
36

21
2

12
%

20
00

22
82

28
2

14
%

22
34

25
49

31
5

14
%

24
57

28
03

34
7

14
%

26
71

30
47

37
7

14
%

10
50

0
12

13
13

07
95

8%
17

28
19

41
21

3
12

%
20

04
22

86
28

3
14

%
22

38
25

54
31

6
14

%
24

62
28

09
34

7
14

%
26

76
30

54
37

7
14

%
10

55
0

12
15

13
10

95
8%

17
31

19
45

21
4

12
%

20
08

22
91

28
3

14
%

22
43

25
59

31
6

14
%

24
67

28
15

34
8

14
%

26
81

30
60

37
8

14
%

10
60

0
12

18
13

13
95

8%
17

35
19

49
21

4
12

%
20

12
22

96
28

4
14

%
22

47
25

64
31

7
14

%
24

72
28

20
34

9
14

%
26

87
30

66
37

9
14

%
10

65
0

12
20

13
16

96
8%

17
38

19
53

21
5

12
%

20
16

23
00

28
4

14
%

22
52

25
69

31
8

14
%

24
77

28
26

34
9

14
%

26
92

30
72

38
0

14
%

10
70

0
12

23
13

19
96

8%
17

42
19

57
21

6
12

%
20

20
23

05
28

5
14

%
22

56
25

74
31

8
14

%
24

82
28

32
35

0
14

%
26

98
30

78
38

1
14

%
10

75
0

12
26

13
22

97
8%

17
45

19
62

21
6

12
%

20
24

23
09

28
5

14
%

22
61

25
80

31
9

14
%

24
87

28
37

35
1

14
%

27
03

30
84

38
1

14
%

10
80

0
12

28
13

25
97

8%
17

49
19

66
21

7
12

%
20

28
23

14
28

6
14

%
22

65
25

85
32

0
14

%
24

92
28

43
35

1
14

%
27

08
30

90
38

2
14

%
10

85
0

12
31

13
28

97
8%

17
53

19
70

21
7

12
%

20
32

23
19

28
7

14
%

22
70

25
90

32
0

14
%

24
97

28
49

35
2

14
%

27
14

30
97

38
3

14
%

10
90

0
12

33
13

31
98

8%
17

56
19

74
21

8
12

%
20

36
23

23
28

7
14

%
22

74
25

95
32

1
14

%
25

02
28

54
35

3
14

%
27

19
31

03
38

4
14

%
10

95
0

12
36

13
34

98
8%

17
60

19
79

21
9

12
%

20
40

23
28

28
8

14
%

22
79

26
00

32
1

14
%

25
07

28
60

35
4

14
%

27
25

31
09

38
4

14
%

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 6
/2

0

27 of 69



W
or

ki
ng

 D
ra

ft
 (S

ep
t. 

24
, 2

02
0)

Si
de

-b
y-

Si
de

 C
om

pa
ris

on
s

Combined Gross Income

Existing

BR5

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

6 
Ch

ild
re

n
1 

Ch
ild

2 
Ch

ild
re

n
3 

Ch
ild

re
n

4 
Ch

ild
re

n
5 

Ch
ild

re
n

11
00

0
12

39
13

37
99

8%
17

63
19

83
21

9
12

%
20

44
23

32
28

8
14

%
22

83
26

05
32

2
14

%
25

11
28

66
35

4
14

%
27

30
31

15
38

5
14

%
11

05
0

12
41

13
40

99
8%

17
67

19
87

22
0

12
%

20
48

23
37

28
9

14
%

22
88

26
10

32
3

14
%

25
16

28
71

35
5

14
%

27
35

31
21

38
6

14
%

11
10

0
12

44
13

43
10

0
8%

17
71

19
91

22
1

12
%

20
52

23
42

29
0

14
%

22
92

26
16

32
3

14
%

25
21

28
77

35
6

14
%

27
41

31
27

38
7

14
%

11
15

0
12

46
13

46
10

0
8%

17
74

19
95

22
1

12
%

20
56

23
46

29
0

14
%

22
97

26
21

32
4

14
%

25
26

28
83

35
6

14
%

27
46

31
34

38
7

14
%

11
20

0
12

49
13

49
10

0
8%

17
78

20
00

22
2

12
%

20
60

23
51

29
1

14
%

23
01

26
26

32
5

14
%

25
31

28
88

35
7

14
%

27
52

31
40

38
8

14
%

11
25

0
12

51
13

53
10

1
8%

17
81

20
04

22
3

13
%

20
64

23
56

29
2

14
%

23
06

26
32

32
6

14
%

25
36

28
95

35
8

14
%

27
57

31
46

39
0

14
%

11
30

0
12

54
13

57
10

3
8%

17
85

20
09

22
5

13
%

20
68

23
61

29
3

14
%

23
10

26
37

32
7

14
%

25
41

29
01

36
0

14
%

27
62

31
54

39
1

14
%

11
35

0
12

57
13

61
10

4
8%

17
88

20
15

22
6

13
%

20
72

23
67

29
4

14
%

23
15

26
43

32
9

14
%

25
46

29
08

36
2

14
%

27
68

31
61

39
3

14
%

11
40

0
12

59
13

65
10

5
8%

17
92

20
20

22
8

13
%

20
76

23
72

29
6

14
%

23
19

26
49

33
0

14
%

25
51

29
14

36
3

14
%

27
73

31
68

39
5

14
%

11
45

0
12

62
13

68
10

7
8%

17
96

20
25

22
9

13
%

20
80

23
77

29
7

14
%

23
24

26
55

33
2

14
%

25
56

29
21

36
5

14
%

27
78

31
75

39
6

14
%

11
50

0
12

64
13

73
10

8
9%

17
99

20
30

23
1

13
%

20
84

23
83

29
8

14
%

23
28

26
62

33
3

14
%

25
61

29
28

36
7

14
%

27
84

31
82

39
9

14
%

11
55

0
12

67
13

77
11

0
9%

18
03

20
36

23
3

13
%

20
88

23
89

30
0

14
%

23
33

26
68

33
5

14
%

25
66

29
35

36
9

14
%

27
89

31
90

40
1

14
%

11
60

0
12

70
13

81
11

1
9%

18
06

20
42

23
5

13
%

20
92

23
94

30
2

14
%

23
37

26
75

33
7

14
%

25
71

29
42

37
1

14
%

27
95

31
98

40
3

14
%

11
65

0
12

72
13

85
11

3
9%

18
10

20
47

23
7

13
%

20
96

24
00

30
4

14
%

23
42

26
81

33
9

14
%

25
76

29
49

37
3

14
%

28
00

32
06

40
6

14
%

11
70

0
12

75
13

90
11

5
9%

18
14

20
53

24
0

13
%

21
00

24
06

30
6

15
%

23
46

26
88

34
1

15
%

25
81

29
56

37
6

15
%

28
05

32
14

40
8

15
%

11
75

0
12

77
13

94
11

6
9%

18
17

20
59

24
2

13
%

21
05

24
12

30
7

15
%

23
51

26
94

34
3

15
%

25
86

29
64

37
8

15
%

28
11

32
21

41
1

15
%

11
80

0
12

80
13

98
11

8
9%

18
21

20
64

24
3

13
%

21
09

24
18

30
9

15
%

23
56

27
01

34
5

15
%

25
91

29
71

37
9

15
%

28
17

32
29

41
2

15
%

11
85

0
12

83
14

02
11

9
9%

18
25

20
70

24
5

13
%

21
14

24
24

31
0

15
%

23
61

27
07

34
6

15
%

25
97

29
78

38
1

15
%

28
23

32
37

41
4

15
%

11
90

0
12

86
14

07
12

1
9%

18
29

20
76

24
6

13
%

21
19

24
29

31
1

15
%

23
66

27
14

34
7

15
%

26
03

29
85

38
2

15
%

28
30

32
45

41
5

15
%

11
95

0
12

89
14

11
12

2
9%

18
33

20
81

24
8

14
%

21
23

24
35

31
2

15
%

23
72

27
20

34
8

15
%

26
09

29
92

38
3

15
%

28
36

32
53

41
7

15
%

12
00

0
12

92
14

15
12

3
10

%
18

38
20

87
24

9
14

%
21

28
24

41
31

3
15

%
23

77
27

27
35

0
15

%
26

15
29

99
38

5
15

%
28

42
32

60
41

8
15

%
12

05
0

12
95

14
20

12
5

10
%

18
42

20
93

25
1

14
%

21
33

24
47

31
4

15
%

23
83

27
33

35
1

15
%

26
21

30
07

38
6

15
%

28
49

32
68

41
9

15
%

12
10

0
12

98
14

24
12

6
10

%
18

46
20

98
25

3
14

%
21

38
24

53
31

5
15

%
23

88
27

40
35

2
15

%
26

27
30

14
38

7
15

%
28

55
32

76
42

1
15

%
12

15
0

13
01

14
28

12
7

10
%

18
50

21
04

25
4

14
%

21
43

24
59

31
6

15
%

23
93

27
46

35
3

15
%

26
33

30
21

38
8

15
%

28
62

32
84

42
2

15
%

12
20

0
13

04
14

32
12

9
10

%
18

54
21

10
25

6
14

%
21

47
24

65
31

7
15

%
23

99
27

53
35

4
15

%
26

38
30

28
39

0
15

%
28

68
32

92
42

4
15

%
12

25
0

13
06

14
37

13
0

10
%

18
58

21
15

25
7

14
%

21
52

24
70

31
8

15
%

24
04

27
59

35
5

15
%

26
44

30
35

39
1

15
%

28
74

32
99

42
5

15
%

12
30

0
13

09
14

41
13

2
10

%
18

63
21

21
25

9
14

%
21

57
24

76
31

9
15

%
24

09
27

66
35

7
15

%
26

50
30

42
39

2
15

%
28

81
33

07
42

6
15

%
12

35
0

13
12

14
45

13
3

10
%

18
67

21
27

26
0

14
%

21
62

24
82

32
0

15
%

24
15

27
72

35
8

15
%

26
56

30
50

39
4

15
%

28
87

33
15

42
8

15
%

12
40

0
13

15
14

49
13

4
10

%
18

71
21

32
26

2
14

%
21

67
24

88
32

1
15

%
24

20
27

79
35

9
15

%
26

62
30

57
39

5
15

%
28

94
33

23
42

9
15

%
12

45
0

13
18

14
54

13
5

10
%

18
75

21
38

26
3

14
%

21
71

24
93

32
2

15
%

24
25

27
85

36
0

15
%

26
68

30
64

39
6

15
%

29
00

33
30

43
0

15
%

12
50

0
13

21
14

56
13

5
10

%
18

79
21

41
26

2
14

%
21

76
24

97
32

0
15

%
24

31
27

89
35

8
15

%
26

74
30

68
39

4
15

%
29

06
33

34
42

8
15

%
12

55
0

13
24

14
59

13
5

10
%

18
83

21
45

26
1

14
%

21
81

25
00

31
9

15
%

24
36

27
92

35
6

15
%

26
80

30
72

39
2

15
%

29
13

33
39

42
6

15
%

12
60

0
13

27
14

62
13

5
10

%
18

87
21

48
26

1
14

%
21

86
25

03
31

7
15

%
24

41
27

96
35

5
15

%
26

86
30

76
39

0
15

%
29

19
33

43
42

4
15

%
12

65
0

13
30

14
64

13
5

10
%

18
91

21
51

26
0

14
%

21
90

25
06

31
6

14
%

24
47

28
00

35
3

14
%

26
91

30
80

38
8

14
%

29
26

33
48

42
2

14
%

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 7
/2

0

28 of 69



W
or

ki
ng

 D
ra

ft
 (S

ep
t. 

24
, 2

02
0)

Si
de

-b
y-

Si
de

 C
om

pa
ris

on
s

Combined Gross Income

Existing

BR5

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

6 
Ch

ild
re

n
1 

Ch
ild

2 
Ch

ild
re

n
3 

Ch
ild

re
n

4 
Ch

ild
re

n
5 

Ch
ild

re
n

12
70

0
13

33
14

67
13

4
10

%
18

96
21

55
25

9
14

%
21

95
25

10
31

4
14

%
24

52
28

03
35

1
14

%
26

97
30

84
38

6
14

%
29

32
33

52
42

0
14

%
12

75
0

13
36

14
70

13
4

10
%

19
00

21
58

25
9

14
%

22
00

25
13

31
3

14
%

24
57

28
07

35
0

14
%

27
03

30
88

38
5

14
%

29
38

33
56

41
8

14
%

12
80

0
13

38
14

73
13

4
10

%
19

04
21

62
25

8
14

%
22

05
25

16
31

1
14

%
24

63
28

11
34

8
14

%
27

09
30

92
38

3
14

%
29

45
33

61
41

6
14

%
12

85
0

13
41

14
75

13
4

10
%

19
08

21
65

25
7

13
%

22
10

25
19

31
0

14
%

24
68

28
14

34
6

14
%

27
15

30
96

38
1

14
%

29
51

33
65

41
4

14
%

12
90

0
13

44
14

78
13

4
10

%
19

12
21

69
25

6
13

%
22

14
25

23
30

8
14

%
24

73
28

18
34

4
14

%
27

21
31

00
37

9
14

%
29

57
33

69
41

2
14

%
12

95
0

13
47

14
81

13
4

10
%

19
16

21
72

25
6

13
%

22
19

25
26

30
7

14
%

24
79

28
22

34
3

14
%

27
27

31
04

37
7

14
%

29
64

33
74

41
0

14
%

13
00

0
13

50
14

83
13

3
10

%
19

20
21

75
25

5
13

%
22

24
25

29
30

5
14

%
24

84
28

25
34

1
14

%
27

32
31

08
37

5
14

%
29

70
33

78
40

8
14

%
13

05
0

13
53

14
86

13
3

10
%

19
24

21
79

25
4

13
%

22
29

25
33

30
4

14
%

24
89

28
29

33
9

14
%

27
38

31
12

37
3

14
%

29
77

33
82

40
6

14
%

13
10

0
13

56
14

89
13

3
10

%
19

29
21

82
25

4
13

%
22

33
25

36
30

2
14

%
24

95
28

32
33

8
14

%
27

44
31

16
37

2
14

%
29

83
33

87
40

4
14

%
13

15
0

13
59

14
92

13
3

10
%

19
33

21
86

25
3

13
%

22
38

25
39

30
1

13
%

25
00

28
36

33
6

13
%

27
50

31
20

37
0

13
%

29
89

33
91

40
2

13
%

13
20

0
13

62
14

94
13

3
10

%
19

37
21

89
25

2
13

%
22

43
25

42
29

9
13

%
25

05
28

40
33

4
13

%
27

56
31

24
36

8
13

%
29

96
33

95
40

0
13

%
13

25
0

13
65

14
97

13
2

10
%

19
41

21
92

25
1

13
%

22
48

25
46

29
8

13
%

25
11

28
43

33
3

13
%

27
62

31
28

36
6

13
%

30
02

34
00

39
8

13
%

13
30

0
13

67
15

00
13

2
10

%
19

45
21

96
25

1
13

%
22

52
25

49
29

6
13

%
25

16
28

47
33

1
13

%
27

68
31

32
36

4
13

%
30

08
34

04
39

6
13

%
13

35
0

13
70

15
02

13
2

10
%

19
49

21
99

25
0

13
%

22
57

25
52

29
5

13
%

25
21

28
51

32
9

13
%

27
74

31
36

36
2

13
%

30
15

34
09

39
4

13
%

13
40

0
13

73
15

05
13

2
10

%
19

53
22

03
24

9
13

%
22

62
25

55
29

3
13

%
25

27
28

54
32

8
13

%
27

79
31

40
36

0
13

%
30

21
34

13
39

2
13

%
13

45
0

13
76

15
08

13
2

10
%

19
58

22
06

24
9

13
%

22
67

25
59

29
2

13
%

25
32

28
58

32
6

13
%

27
85

31
44

35
9

13
%

30
28

34
17

39
0

13
%

13
50

0
13

79
15

11
13

2
10

%
19

62
22

10
24

8
13

%
22

72
25

62
29

0
13

%
25

37
28

62
32

4
13

%
27

91
31

48
35

7
13

%
30

34
34

22
38

8
13

%
13

55
0

13
82

15
13

13
1

10
%

19
66

22
13

24
7

13
%

22
76

25
65

28
9

13
%

25
43

28
65

32
3

13
%

27
97

31
52

35
5

13
%

30
40

34
26

38
6

13
%

13
60

0
13

85
15

16
13

1
9%

19
70

22
16

24
6

13
%

22
81

25
68

28
7

13
%

25
48

28
69

32
1

13
%

28
03

31
56

35
3

13
%

30
47

34
30

38
4

13
%

13
65

0
13

88
15

19
13

1
9%

19
74

22
20

24
6

12
%

22
86

25
72

28
6

13
%

25
53

28
73

32
0

13
%

28
09

31
61

35
2

13
%

30
53

34
36

38
3

13
%

13
70

0
13

91
15

24
13

3
10

%
19

78
22

28
25

0
13

%
22

91
25

81
29

0
13

%
25

59
28

83
32

4
13

%
28

15
31

71
35

7
13

%
30

59
34

47
38

8
13

%
13

75
0

13
93

15
29

13
6

10
%

19
82

22
35

25
3

13
%

22
95

25
90

29
4

13
%

25
64

28
93

32
9

13
%

28
20

31
82

36
2

13
%

30
66

34
59

39
3

13
%

13
80

0
13

96
15

34
13

8
10

%
19

86
22

43
25

6
13

%
23

00
25

99
29

8
13

%
25

69
29

03
33

3
13

%
28

26
31

93
36

7
13

%
30

72
34

71
39

9
13

%
13

85
0

13
99

15
39

14
0

10
%

19
91

22
50

26
0

13
%

23
05

26
07

30
2

13
%

25
75

29
13

33
8

13
%

28
32

32
04

37
2

13
%

30
79

34
82

40
4

13
%

13
90

0
14

02
15

44
14

2
10

%
19

95
22

58
26

3
13

%
23

10
26

16
30

6
13

%
25

80
29

22
34

2
13

%
28

38
32

15
37

7
13

%
30

85
34

94
40

9
13

%
13

95
0

14
05

15
49

14
4

10
%

19
99

22
65

26
6

13
%

23
15

26
25

31
0

13
%

25
85

29
32

34
7

13
%

28
44

32
25

38
1

13
%

30
91

35
06

41
5

13
%

14
00

0
14

08
15

54
14

6
10

%
20

03
22

72
27

0
13

%
23

19
26

34
31

4
14

%
25

91
29

42
35

1
14

%
28

50
32

36
38

6
14

%
30

98
35

18
42

0
14

%
14

05
0

14
11

15
59

14
8

11
%

20
07

22
80

27
3

14
%

23
24

26
42

31
8

14
%

25
96

29
52

35
6

14
%

28
56

32
47

39
1

14
%

31
04

35
29

42
5

14
%

14
10

0
14

14
15

64
15

0
11

%
20

11
22

87
27

6
14

%
23

29
26

51
32

2
14

%
26

01
29

61
36

0
14

%
28

61
32

57
39

6
14

%
31

10
35

41
43

0
14

%
14

15
0

14
17

15
69

15
2

11
%

20
15

22
95

27
9

14
%

23
34

26
60

32
6

14
%

26
07

29
71

36
4

14
%

28
67

32
68

40
1

14
%

31
17

35
52

43
6

14
%

14
20

0
14

20
15

74
15

4
11

%
20

19
23

02
28

3
14

%
23

38
26

69
33

0
14

%
26

12
29

81
36

9
14

%
28

73
32

79
40

6
14

%
31

23
35

64
44

1
14

%
14

25
0

14
22

15
79

15
7

11
%

20
24

23
09

28
6

14
%

23
43

26
77

33
4

14
%

26
17

29
91

37
3

14
%

28
79

32
90

41
1

14
%

31
30

35
76

44
6

14
%

14
30

0
14

25
15

84
15

9
11

%
20

28
23

17
28

9
14

%
23

48
26

86
33

8
14

%
26

23
30

00
37

8
14

%
28

85
33

00
41

5
14

%
31

36
35

87
45

2
14

%
14

35
0

14
28

15
89

16
1

11
%

20
32

23
24

29
2

14
%

23
53

26
95

34
2

15
%

26
28

30
10

38
2

15
%

28
91

33
11

42
0

15
%

31
42

35
99

45
7

15
%

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 8
/2

0

29 of 69



W
or

ki
ng

 D
ra

ft
 (S

ep
t. 

24
, 2

02
0)

Si
de

-b
y-

Si
de

 C
om

pa
ris

on
s

Combined Gross Income

Existing

BR5

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

6 
Ch

ild
re

n
1 

Ch
ild

2 
Ch

ild
re

n
3 

Ch
ild

re
n

4 
Ch

ild
re

n
5 

Ch
ild

re
n

14
40

0
14

31
15

94
16

3
11

%
20

36
23

32
29

6
15

%
23

57
27

03
34

6
15

%
26

33
30

20
38

6
15

%
28

97
33

22
42

5
15

%
31

49
36

11
46

2
15

%
14

45
0

14
34

15
99

16
5

12
%

20
40

23
39

29
9

15
%

23
62

27
12

35
0

15
%

26
39

30
29

39
1

15
%

29
03

33
32

43
0

15
%

31
55

36
22

46
7

15
%

14
50

0
14

37
16

04
16

7
12

%
20

44
23

46
30

2
15

%
23

67
27

21
35

4
15

%
26

44
30

39
39

5
15

%
29

08
33

43
43

5
15

%
31

61
36

34
47

3
15

%
14

55
0

14
40

16
09

16
9

12
%

20
48

23
54

30
6

15
%

23
72

27
30

35
8

15
%

26
49

30
49

40
0

15
%

29
14

33
54

44
0

15
%

31
68

36
46

47
8

15
%

14
60

0
14

43
16

14
17

1
12

%
20

52
23

61
30

9
15

%
23

77
27

38
36

2
15

%
26

55
30

59
40

4
15

%
29

20
33

65
44

4
15

%
31

74
36

57
48

3
15

%
14

65
0

14
46

16
19

17
3

12
%

20
56

23
69

31
2

15
%

23
81

27
47

36
6

15
%

26
60

30
68

40
8

15
%

29
26

33
75

44
9

15
%

31
80

36
69

48
8

15
%

14
70

0
14

48
16

23
17

5
12

%
20

60
23

75
31

5
15

%
23

85
27

55
36

9
15

%
26

65
30

77
41

2
15

%
29

31
33

85
45

4
15

%
31

86
36

79
49

3
15

%
14

75
0

14
51

16
28

17
6

12
%

20
64

23
82

31
8

15
%

23
90

27
62

37
3

16
%

26
69

30
86

41
6

16
%

29
36

33
94

45
8

16
%

31
92

36
89

49
8

16
%

14
80

0
14

54
16

32
17

8
12

%
20

68
23

88
32

0
15

%
23

94
27

70
37

6
16

%
26

74
30

94
42

0
16

%
29

41
34

04
46

2
16

%
31

97
37

00
50

2
16

%
14

85
0

14
57

16
37

18
0

12
%

20
72

23
95

32
3

16
%

23
98

27
78

38
0

16
%

26
79

31
03

42
4

16
%

29
47

34
13

46
6

16
%

32
03

37
10

50
7

16
%

14
90

0
14

60
16

41
18

1
12

%
20

76
24

01
32

6
16

%
24

02
27

85
38

3
16

%
26

84
31

11
42

8
16

%
29

52
34

23
47

1
16

%
32

09
37

20
51

2
16

%
14

95
0

14
63

16
45

18
3

12
%

20
79

24
08

32
8

16
%

24
07

27
93

38
6

16
%

26
88

31
20

43
2

16
%

29
57

34
32

47
5

16
%

32
14

37
31

51
6

16
%

15
00

0
14

66
16

50
18

4
13

%
20

83
24

14
33

1
16

%
24

11
28

01
39

0
16

%
26

93
31

29
43

6
16

%
29

62
34

42
47

9
16

%
32

20
37

41
52

1
16

%
15

05
0

14
68

16
54

18
6

13
%

20
87

24
21

33
4

16
%

24
15

28
09

39
3

16
%

26
98

31
37

43
9

16
%

29
68

34
51

48
3

16
%

32
26

37
51

52
5

16
%

15
10

0
14

71
16

59
18

8
13

%
20

91
24

28
33

7
16

%
24

19
28

16
39

7
16

%
27

03
31

46
44

3
16

%
29

73
34

60
48

8
16

%
32

31
37

62
53

0
16

%
15

15
0

14
74

16
63

18
9

13
%

20
95

24
34

33
9

16
%

24
24

28
24

40
0

17
%

27
07

31
55

44
7

17
%

29
78

34
70

49
2

17
%

32
37

37
72

53
5

17
%

15
20

0
14

77
16

68
19

1
13

%
20

99
24

41
34

2
16

%
24

28
28

32
40

4
17

%
27

12
31

63
45

1
17

%
29

83
34

79
49

6
17

%
32

43
37

82
53

9
17

%
15

25
0

14
80

16
72

19
2

13
%

21
02

24
47

34
5

16
%

24
32

28
40

40
7

17
%

27
17

31
72

45
5

17
%

29
88

34
89

50
0

17
%

32
48

37
92

54
4

17
%

15
30

0
14

83
16

76
19

4
13

%
21

06
24

54
34

8
17

%
24

36
28

47
41

1
17

%
27

22
31

80
45

9
17

%
29

94
34

98
50

5
17

%
32

54
38

03
54

9
17

%
15

35
0

14
85

16
81

19
6

13
%

21
10

24
60

35
0

17
%

24
41

28
55

41
4

17
%

27
26

31
89

46
3

17
%

29
99

35
08

50
9

17
%

32
60

38
13

55
3

17
%

15
40

0
14

88
16

85
19

7
13

%
21

14
24

67
35

3
17

%
24

45
28

63
41

8
17

%
27

31
31

98
46

7
17

%
30

04
35

17
51

3
17

%
32

66
38

23
55

8
17

%
15

45
0

14
91

16
90

19
9

13
%

21
18

24
74

35
6

17
%

24
49

28
70

42
1

17
%

27
36

32
06

47
0

17
%

30
09

35
27

51
8

17
%

32
71

38
34

56
3

17
%

15
50

0
14

94
16

94
20

0
13

%
21

22
24

80
35

9
17

%
24

53
28

78
42

5
17

%
27

41
32

15
47

4
17

%
30

15
35

36
52

2
17

%
32

77
38

44
56

7
17

%
15

55
0

14
97

16
99

20
2

13
%

21
25

24
87

36
1

17
%

24
58

28
86

42
8

17
%

27
45

32
24

47
8

17
%

30
20

35
46

52
6

17
%

32
83

38
54

57
2

17
%

15
60

0
15

00
17

02
20

3
14

%
21

29
24

92
36

2
17

%
24

62
28

91
42

9
17

%
27

50
32

29
47

9
17

%
30

25
35

52
52

7
17

%
32

88
38

61
57

3
17

%
15

65
0

15
02

17
06

20
3

14
%

21
33

24
96

36
3

17
%

24
66

28
96

43
0

17
%

27
55

32
35

48
0

17
%

30
30

35
58

52
8

17
%

32
94

38
68

57
4

17
%

15
70

0
15

05
17

09
20

4
14

%
21

37
25

01
36

4
17

%
24

71
29

01
43

0
17

%
27

60
32

40
48

0
17

%
30

36
35

64
52

8
17

%
33

00
38

74
57

4
17

%
15

75
0

15
08

17
13

20
5

14
%

21
41

25
06

36
5

17
%

24
75

29
05

43
1

17
%

27
64

32
45

48
1

17
%

30
41

35
70

52
9

17
%

33
05

38
80

57
5

17
%

15
80

0
15

11
17

16
20

5
14

%
21

45
25

10
36

6
17

%
24

79
29

10
43

1
17

%
27

69
32

51
48

2
17

%
30

46
35

76
53

0
17

%
33

11
38

87
57

6
17

%
15

85
0

15
14

17
20

20
6

14
%

21
48

25
15

36
6

17
%

24
83

29
15

43
2

17
%

27
74

32
56

48
2

17
%

30
51

35
82

53
0

17
%

33
17

38
93

57
7

17
%

15
90

0
15

17
17

23
20

7
14

%
21

52
25

20
36

7
17

%
24

88
29

20
43

2
17

%
27

79
32

61
48

3
17

%
30

56
35

87
53

1
17

%
33

22
39

00
57

7
17

%
15

95
0

15
19

17
27

20
8

14
%

21
56

25
24

36
8

17
%

24
92

29
24

43
3

17
%

27
83

32
67

48
3

17
%

30
62

35
93

53
2

17
%

33
28

39
06

57
8

17
%

16
00

0
15

22
17

30
20

8
14

%
21

60
25

29
36

9
17

%
24

96
29

29
43

3
17

%
27

88
32

72
48

4
17

%
30

67
35

99
53

2
17

%
33

34
39

12
57

9
17

%
16

05
0

15
25

17
34

20
9

14
%

21
64

25
34

37
0

17
%

25
00

29
34

43
4

17
%

27
93

32
77

48
5

17
%

30
72

36
05

53
3

17
%

33
39

39
19

57
9

17
%

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 9
/2

0

30 of 69



W
or

ki
ng

 D
ra

ft
 (S

ep
t. 

24
, 2

02
0)

Si
de

-b
y-

Si
de

 C
om

pa
ris

on
s

Combined Gross Income

Existing

BR5

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

6 
Ch

ild
re

n
1 

Ch
ild

2 
Ch

ild
re

n
3 

Ch
ild

re
n

4 
Ch

ild
re

n
5 

Ch
ild

re
n

16
10

0
15

28
17

38
21

0
14

%
21

68
25

38
37

1
17

%
25

05
29

39
43

4
17

%
27

98
32

83
48

5
17

%
30

77
36

11
53

4
17

%
33

45
39

25
58

0
17

%
16

15
0

15
31

17
41

21
0

14
%

21
71

25
43

37
1

17
%

25
09

29
44

43
5

17
%

28
02

32
88

48
6

17
%

30
83

36
17

53
4

17
%

33
51

39
31

58
1

17
%

16
20

0
15

34
17

45
21

1
14

%
21

75
25

48
37

2
17

%
25

13
29

48
43

5
17

%
28

07
32

93
48

6
17

%
30

88
36

23
53

5
17

%
33

56
39

38
58

1
17

%
16

25
0

15
36

17
48

21
2

14
%

21
79

25
52

37
3

17
%

25
17

29
53

43
6

17
%

28
12

32
99

48
7

17
%

30
93

36
29

53
6

17
%

33
62

39
44

58
2

17
%

16
30

0
15

39
17

52
21

2
14

%
21

83
25

57
37

4
17

%
25

22
29

58
43

6
17

%
28

17
33

04
48

8
17

%
30

98
36

34
53

6
17

%
33

68
39

51
58

3
17

%
16

35
0

15
42

17
55

21
3

14
%

21
87

25
62

37
5

17
%

25
26

29
63

43
7

17
%

28
21

33
09

48
8

17
%

31
03

36
40

53
7

17
%

33
73

39
57

58
4

17
%

16
40

0
15

45
17

59
21

4
14

%
21

90
25

66
37

6
17

%
25

30
29

68
43

8
17

%
28

26
33

15
48

9
17

%
31

08
36

46
53

8
17

%
33

79
39

63
58

5
17

%
16

45
0

15
47

17
62

21
5

14
%

21
94

25
71

37
7

17
%

25
34

29
72

43
8

17
%

28
30

33
20

49
0

17
%

31
14

36
52

53
9

17
%

33
84

39
70

58
5

17
%

16
50

0
15

50
17

66
21

5
14

%
21

98
25

76
37

7
17

%
25

39
29

77
43

8
17

%
28

36
33

25
49

0
17

%
31

19
36

58
53

9
17

%
33

91
39

76
58

5
17

%
16

55
0

15
53

17
69

21
6

14
%

22
02

25
80

37
8

17
%

25
44

29
82

43
8

17
%

28
41

33
31

49
0

17
%

31
25

36
64

53
9

17
%

33
97

39
83

58
5

17
%

16
60

0
15

56
17

73
21

7
14

%
22

06
25

85
37

8
17

%
25

48
29

87
43

8
17

%
28

46
33

36
49

0
17

%
31

31
36

70
53

9
17

%
34

03
39

89
58

5
17

%
16

65
0

15
59

17
76

21
7

14
%

22
11

25
89

37
9

17
%

25
53

29
91

43
8

17
%

28
52

33
41

49
0

17
%

31
37

36
76

53
9

17
%

34
10

39
95

58
6

17
%

16
70

0
15

62
17

80
21

8
14

%
22

15
25

94
37

9
17

%
25

58
29

96
43

8
17

%
28

57
33

47
49

0
17

%
31

43
36

81
53

9
17

%
34

16
40

02
58

6
17

%
16

75
0

15
65

17
83

21
9

14
%

22
19

25
99

38
0

17
%

25
62

30
01

43
8

17
%

28
62

33
52

49
0

17
%

31
48

36
87

53
9

17
%

34
22

40
08

58
6

17
%

16
80

0
15

68
17

87
21

9
14

%
22

23
26

03
38

1
17

%
25

67
30

06
43

8
17

%
28

67
33

57
49

0
17

%
31

54
36

93
53

9
17

%
34

29
40

14
58

6
17

%
16

85
0

15
70

17
90

22
0

14
%

22
27

26
08

38
1

17
%

25
72

30
10

43
8

17
%

28
73

33
63

49
0

17
%

31
60

36
99

53
9

17
%

34
35

40
21

58
6

17
%

16
90

0
15

73
17

94
22

0
14

%
22

31
26

13
38

2
17

%
25

77
30

15
43

9
17

%
28

78
33

68
49

0
17

%
31

66
37

05
53

9
17

%
34

41
40

27
58

6
17

%
16

95
0

15
76

17
97

22
1

14
%

22
35

26
17

38
2

17
%

25
81

30
20

43
9

17
%

28
83

33
73

49
0

17
%

31
72

37
10

53
9

17
%

34
47

40
33

58
6

17
%

17
00

0
15

79
18

01
22

2
14

%
22

39
26

22
38

3
17

%
25

86
30

24
43

9
17

%
28

88
33

78
49

0
17

%
31

77
37

16
53

9
17

%
34

54
40

39
58

6
17

%
17

05
0

15
82

18
04

22
2

14
%

22
43

26
26

38
3

17
%

25
91

30
29

43
9

17
%

28
94

33
84

49
0

17
%

31
83

37
22

53
9

17
%

34
60

40
46

58
6

17
%

17
10

0
15

85
18

08
22

3
14

%
22

47
26

31
38

4
17

%
25

95
30

34
43

9
17

%
28

99
33

89
49

0
17

%
31

89
37

28
53

9
17

%
34

66
40

52
58

6
17

%
17

15
0

15
88

18
11

22
4

14
%

22
51

26
35

38
4

17
%

26
00

30
39

43
9

17
%

29
04

33
94

49
0

17
%

31
95

37
34

53
9

17
%

34
73

40
58

58
6

17
%

17
20

0
15

90
18

15
22

4
14

%
22

55
26

40
38

5
17

%
26

05
30

43
43

9
17

%
29

09
33

99
49

0
17

%
32

00
37

39
53

9
17

%
34

79
40

65
58

6
17

%
17

25
0

15
93

18
18

22
5

14
%

22
59

26
45

38
5

17
%

26
09

30
48

43
9

17
%

29
15

34
05

49
0

17
%

32
06

37
45

53
9

17
%

34
85

40
71

58
6

17
%

17
30

0
15

96
18

22
22

5
14

%
22

63
26

49
38

6
17

%
26

14
30

53
43

9
17

%
29

20
34

10
49

0
17

%
32

12
37

51
53

9
17

%
34

91
40

77
58

6
17

%
17

35
0

15
99

18
25

22
6

14
%

22
67

26
54

38
6

17
%

26
19

30
57

43
9

17
%

29
25

34
15

49
0

17
%

32
18

37
57

53
9

17
%

34
98

40
84

58
6

17
%

17
40

0
16

02
18

29
22

7
14

%
22

71
26

58
38

7
17

%
26

23
30

62
43

9
17

%
29

30
34

20
49

0
17

%
32

23
37

62
53

9
17

%
35

04
40

90
58

6
17

%
17

45
0

16
05

18
32

22
7

14
%

22
76

26
63

38
8

17
%

26
28

30
67

43
9

17
%

29
36

34
26

49
0

17
%

32
29

37
68

53
9

17
%

35
10

40
96

58
6

17
%

17
50

0
16

08
18

35
22

8
14

%
22

80
26

68
38

8
17

%
26

33
30

72
43

9
17

%
29

41
34

31
49

0
17

%
32

35
37

74
53

9
17

%
35

16
41

02
58

6
17

%
17

55
0

16
10

18
39

22
9

14
%

22
84

26
72

38
9

17
%

26
38

30
76

43
9

17
%

29
46

34
36

49
0

17
%

32
41

37
80

53
9

17
%

35
23

41
09

58
6

17
%

17
60

0
16

13
18

42
22

9
14

%
22

88
26

77
38

9
17

%
26

42
30

81
43

9
17

%
29

51
34

42
49

0
17

%
32

46
37

86
53

9
17

%
35

29
41

15
58

6
17

%
17

65
0

16
16

18
46

23
0

14
%

22
92

26
81

39
0

17
%

26
47

30
86

43
9

17
%

29
57

34
47

49
0

17
%

32
52

37
91

53
9

17
%

35
35

41
21

58
6

17
%

17
70

0
16

19
18

49
23

0
14

%
22

96
26

86
39

0
17

%
26

52
30

90
43

9
17

%
29

62
34

52
49

0
17

%
32

58
37

97
53

9
17

%
35

41
41

28
58

6
17

%
17

75
0

16
22

18
53

23
1

14
%

23
00

26
91

39
1

17
%

26
56

30
95

43
9

17
%

29
67

34
57

49
0

17
%

32
64

38
03

53
9

17
%

35
48

41
34

58
6

17
%

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 1
0/

20

31 of 69



W
or

ki
ng

 D
ra

ft
 (S

ep
t. 

24
, 2

02
0)

Si
de

-b
y-

Si
de

 C
om

pa
ris

on
s

Combined Gross Income

Existing

BR5

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

6 
Ch

ild
re

n
1 

Ch
ild

2 
Ch

ild
re

n
3 

Ch
ild

re
n

4 
Ch

ild
re

n
5 

Ch
ild

re
n

17
80

0
16

25
18

56
23

2
14

%
23

04
26

95
39

1
17

%
26

61
31

00
43

9
16

%
29

72
34

63
49

0
16

%
32

70
38

09
53

9
16

%
35

54
41

40
58

6
16

%
17

85
0

16
28

18
60

23
2

14
%

23
08

27
00

39
2

17
%

26
66

31
05

43
9

16
%

29
78

34
68

49
0

16
%

32
75

38
15

53
9

16
%

35
60

41
46

58
6

16
%

17
90

0
16

30
18

63
23

3
14

%
23

12
27

04
39

2
17

%
26

70
31

09
43

9
16

%
29

83
34

73
49

0
16

%
32

81
38

20
53

9
16

%
35

67
41

53
58

6
16

%
17

95
0

16
33

18
67

23
4

14
%

23
16

27
09

39
3

17
%

26
75

31
14

43
9

16
%

29
88

34
78

49
0

16
%

32
87

38
26

53
9

16
%

35
73

41
59

58
6

16
%

18
00

0
16

36
18

70
23

4
14

%
23

20
27

14
39

3
17

%
26

80
31

19
43

9
16

%
29

93
34

84
49

0
16

%
32

93
38

32
53

9
16

%
35

79
41

65
58

6
16

%
18

05
0

16
39

18
74

23
5

14
%

23
24

27
18

39
4

17
%

26
84

31
23

43
9

16
%

29
99

34
89

49
0

16
%

32
98

38
38

53
9

16
%

35
85

41
72

58
6

16
%

18
10

0
16

42
18

77
23

5
14

%
23

28
27

23
39

5
17

%
26

89
31

28
43

9
16

%
30

04
34

94
49

0
16

%
33

04
38

44
53

9
16

%
35

92
41

78
58

6
16

%
18

15
0

16
45

18
81

23
6

14
%

23
32

27
27

39
5

17
%

26
94

31
33

43
9

16
%

30
09

34
99

49
0

16
%

33
10

38
49

53
9

16
%

35
98

41
84

58
6

16
%

18
20

0
16

48
18

84
23

7
14

%
23

36
27

32
39

6
17

%
26

99
31

38
43

9
16

%
30

14
35

05
49

0
16

%
33

16
38

55
54

0
16

%
36

04
41

91
58

6
16

%
18

25
0

16
50

18
88

23
7

14
%

23
40

27
37

39
6

17
%

27
03

31
42

43
9

16
%

30
19

35
10

49
0

16
%

33
21

38
61

54
0

16
%

36
10

41
97

58
6

16
%

18
30

0
16

53
18

91
23

8
14

%
23

45
27

41
39

7
17

%
27

08
31

47
43

9
16

%
30

25
35

15
49

1
16

%
33

27
38

67
54

0
16

%
36

17
42

03
58

6
16

%
18

35
0

16
56

18
94

23
8

14
%

23
49

27
46

39
8

17
%

27
13

31
54

44
1

16
%

30
30

35
23

49
3

16
%

33
33

38
75

54
2

16
%

36
23

42
12

58
9

16
%

18
40

0
16

59
18

97
23

8
14

%
23

53
27

51
39

9
17

%
27

17
31

60
44

3
16

%
30

35
35

30
49

5
16

%
33

39
38

83
54

5
16

%
36

29
42

21
59

2
16

%
18

45
0

16
62

19
00

23
8

14
%

23
57

27
56

40
0

17
%

27
22

31
67

44
5

16
%

30
40

35
38

49
7

16
%

33
44

38
92

54
7

16
%

36
35

42
30

59
5

16
%

18
50

0
16

65
19

03
23

8
14

%
23

61
27

61
40

0
17

%
27

27
31

74
44

7
16

%
30

46
35

45
50

0
16

%
33

50
39

00
55

0
16

%
36

42
42

39
59

7
16

%
18

55
0

16
67

19
06

23
8

14
%

23
65

27
66

40
1

17
%

27
31

31
81

44
9

16
%

30
51

35
53

50
2

16
%

33
56

39
08

55
2

16
%

36
48

42
48

60
0

16
%

18
60

0
16

70
19

09
23

8
14

%
23

69
27

71
40

2
17

%
27

36
31

87
45

1
16

%
30

56
35

60
50

4
16

%
33

62
39

16
55

5
16

%
36

54
42

57
60

3
16

%
18

65
0

16
73

19
12

23
8

14
%

23
73

27
76

40
3

17
%

27
41

31
94

45
3

17
%

30
61

35
68

50
6

17
%

33
68

39
25

55
7

17
%

36
61

42
66

60
6

17
%

18
70

0
16

76
19

14
23

8
14

%
23

77
27

81
40

4
17

%
27

45
32

01
45

5
17

%
30

67
35

75
50

9
17

%
33

73
39

33
56

0
17

%
36

67
42

75
60

8
17

%
18

75
0

16
79

19
17

23
8

14
%

23
81

27
86

40
5

17
%

27
50

32
08

45
8

17
%

30
72

35
83

51
1

17
%

33
79

39
41

56
2

17
%

36
73

42
84

61
1

17
%

18
80

0
16

82
19

20
23

8
14

%
23

85
27

91
40

6
17

%
27

55
32

14
46

0
17

%
30

77
35

90
51

3
17

%
33

85
39

49
56

5
17

%
36

79
42

93
61

4
17

%
18

85
0

16
85

19
23

23
9

14
%

23
89

27
96

40
7

17
%

27
59

32
21

46
2

17
%

30
82

35
98

51
6

17
%

33
91

39
58

56
7

17
%

36
86

43
02

61
6

17
%

18
90

0
16

87
19

26
23

9
14

%
23

93
28

01
40

8
17

%
27

64
32

28
46

4
17

%
30

88
36

05
51

8
17

%
33

96
39

66
57

0
17

%
36

92
43

11
61

9
17

%
18

95
0

16
90

19
29

23
9

14
%

23
97

28
06

40
9

17
%

27
69

32
35

46
6

17
%

30
93

36
13

52
0

17
%

34
02

39
74

57
2

17
%

36
98

43
20

62
2

17
%

19
00

0
16

93
19

32
23

9
14

%
24

01
28

11
41

0
17

%
27

74
32

41
46

8
17

%
30

98
36

21
52

2
17

%
34

08
39

83
57

5
17

%
37

04
43

29
62

5
17

%
19

05
0

16
96

19
35

23
9

14
%

24
05

28
16

41
1

17
%

27
78

32
48

47
0

17
%

31
03

36
28

52
5

17
%

34
14

39
91

57
7

17
%

37
11

43
38

62
7

17
%

19
10

0
16

99
19

38
23

9
14

%
24

09
28

21
41

2
17

%
27

83
32

55
47

2
17

%
31

09
36

36
52

7
17

%
34

19
39

99
58

0
17

%
37

17
43

47
63

0
17

%
19

15
0

17
02

19
41

23
9

14
%

24
14

28
26

41
3

17
%

27
88

32
61

47
4

17
%

31
14

36
43

52
9

17
%

34
25

40
07

58
2

17
%

37
23

43
56

63
3

17
%

19
20

0
17

05
19

43
23

9
14

%
24

18
28

31
41

4
17

%
27

92
32

68
47

6
17

%
31

19
36

51
53

2
17

%
34

31
40

16
58

5
17

%
37

29
43

65
63

6
17

%
19

25
0

17
07

19
46

23
9

14
%

24
22

28
36

41
5

17
%

27
97

32
75

47
8

17
%

31
24

36
58

53
4

17
%

34
37

40
24

58
7

17
%

37
36

43
74

63
8

17
%

19
30

0
17

10
19

49
23

9
14

%
24

26
28

41
41

5
17

%
28

02
32

82
48

0
17

%
31

30
36

66
53

6
17

%
34

42
40

32
59

0
17

%
37

42
43

83
64

1
17

%
19

35
0

17
13

19
52

23
9

14
%

24
30

28
46

41
6

17
%

28
06

32
88

48
2

17
%

31
35

36
73

53
8

17
%

34
48

40
40

59
2

17
%

37
48

43
92

64
4

17
%

19
40

0
17

16
19

55
23

9
14

%
24

34
28

51
41

7
17

%
28

11
32

95
48

4
17

%
31

40
36

81
54

1
17

%
34

54
40

49
59

5
17

%
37

55
44

01
64

7
17

%
19

45
0

17
19

19
58

23
9

14
%

24
38

28
56

41
8

17
%

28
16

33
02

48
6

17
%

31
45

36
88

54
3

17
%

34
60

40
57

59
7

17
%

37
61

44
10

64
9

17
%

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 1
1/

20

32 of 69



W
or

ki
ng

 D
ra

ft
 (S

ep
t. 

24
, 2

02
0)

Si
de

-b
y-

Si
de

 C
om

pa
ris

on
s

Combined Gross Income

Existing

BR5

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

6 
Ch

ild
re

n
1 

Ch
ild

2 
Ch

ild
re

n
3 

Ch
ild

re
n

4 
Ch

ild
re

n
5 

Ch
ild

re
n

19
50

0
17

22
19

61
23

9
14

%
24

42
28

61
41

9
17

%
28

20
33

09
48

8
17

%
31

50
36

96
54

5
17

%
34

66
40

65
60

0
17

%
37

67
44

19
65

2
17

%
19

55
0

17
25

19
64

23
9

14
%

24
46

28
66

42
0

17
%

28
25

33
15

49
0

17
%

31
56

37
03

54
8

17
%

34
71

40
74

60
2

17
%

37
73

44
28

65
5

17
%

19
60

0
17

27
19

67
24

0
14

%
24

50
28

71
42

1
17

%
28

30
33

22
49

3
17

%
31

61
37

11
55

0
17

%
34

77
40

82
60

5
17

%
37

79
44

37
65

8
17

%
19

65
0

17
29

19
70

24
0

14
%

24
53

28
76

42
3

17
%

28
33

33
29

49
6

18
%

31
64

37
18

55
4

18
%

34
81

40
90

60
9

18
%

37
84

44
46

66
2

18
%

19
70

0
17

32
19

73
24

1
14

%
24

56
28

81
42

5
17

%
28

36
33

36
49

9
18

%
31

68
37

26
55

8
18

%
34

85
40

98
61

4
18

%
37

88
44

55
66

7
18

%
19

75
0

17
34

19
75

24
2

14
%

24
59

28
86

42
7

17
%

28
39

33
42

50
3

18
%

31
72

37
33

56
2

18
%

34
89

41
07

61
8

18
%

37
92

44
64

67
2

18
%

19
80

0
17

36
19

78
24

3
14

%
24

62
28

91
43

0
17

%
28

43
33

49
50

6
18

%
31

75
37

41
56

5
18

%
34

93
41

15
62

2
18

%
37

97
44

73
67

6
18

%
19

85
0

17
38

19
81

24
3

14
%

24
65

28
96

43
2

18
%

28
46

33
56

51
0

18
%

31
79

37
48

56
9

18
%

34
97

41
23

62
6

18
%

38
01

44
82

68
1

18
%

19
90

0
17

40
19

84
24

4
14

%
24

67
29

01
43

4
18

%
28

49
33

63
51

3
18

%
31

83
37

56
57

3
18

%
35

01
41

32
63

0
18

%
38

06
44

91
68

5
18

%
19

95
0

17
42

19
87

24
5

14
%

24
70

29
06

43
6

18
%

28
53

33
69

51
7

18
%

31
86

37
63

57
7

18
%

35
05

41
40

63
5

18
%

38
10

45
00

69
0

18
%

20
00

0
17

44
19

90
24

6
14

%
24

73
29

11
43

8
18

%
28

56
33

76
52

0
18

%
31

90
37

71
58

1
18

%
35

09
41

48
63

9
18

%
38

15
45

09
69

4
18

%
20

05
0

19
93

29
16

33
83

37
78

41
56

45
18

20
10

0
19

96
29

21
33

89
37

86
41

65
45

27
20

15
0

19
99

29
26

33
96

37
94

41
73

45
36

20
20

0
20

02
29

31
34

03
38

01
41

81
45

45
20

25
0

20
05

29
36

34
10

38
09

41
89

45
54

20
30

0
20

07
29

41
34

16
38

16
41

98
45

63
20

35
0

20
10

29
46

34
23

38
24

42
06

45
72

20
40

0
20

13
29

51
34

30
38

31
42

14
45

81
20

45
0

20
16

29
56

34
37

38
39

42
23

45
90

20
50

0
20

19
29

61
34

43
38

46
42

31
45

99
20

55
0

20
22

29
66

34
50

38
54

42
39

46
08

20
60

0
20

25
29

71
34

57
38

61
42

47
46

17
20

65
0

20
28

29
76

34
64

38
69

42
56

46
26

20
70

0
20

31
29

81
34

70
38

76
42

64
46

35
20

75
0

20
34

29
86

34
77

38
84

42
72

46
44

20
80

0
20

36
29

91
34

84
38

91
42

80
46

53
20

85
0

20
39

29
96

34
90

38
99

42
89

46
62

20
90

0
20

42
30

01
34

97
39

06
42

97
46

71
20

95
0

20
45

30
06

35
04

39
14

43
05

46
80

21
00

0
20

48
30

11
35

11
39

21
43

14
46

89
21

05
0

20
51

30
16

35
17

39
29

43
22

46
98

21
10

0
20

54
30

21
35

24
39

36
43

30
47

07
21

15
0

20
57

30
26

35
31

39
44

43
38

47
16

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 1
2/

20

33 of 69



W
or

ki
ng

 D
ra

ft
 (S

ep
t. 

24
, 2

02
0)

Si
de

-b
y-

Si
de

 C
om

pa
ris

on
s

Combined Gross Income

Existing

BR5

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

6 
Ch

ild
re

n
1 

Ch
ild

2 
Ch

ild
re

n
3 

Ch
ild

re
n

4 
Ch

ild
re

n
5 

Ch
ild

re
n

21
20

0
20

60
30

31
35

38
39

51
43

47
47

25
21

25
0

20
63

30
36

35
44

39
59

43
55

47
34

21
30

0
20

66
30

41
35

51
39

67
43

63
47

43
21

35
0

20
68

30
46

35
58

39
74

43
71

47
52

21
40

0
20

71
30

51
35

65
39

82
43

80
47

61
21

45
0

20
74

30
56

35
71

39
89

43
88

47
70

21
50

0
20

77
30

61
35

78
39

97
43

96
47

79
21

55
0

20
80

30
66

35
85

40
04

44
05

47
88

21
60

0
20

83
30

71
35

91
40

12
44

13
47

97
21

65
0

20
86

30
76

35
98

40
19

44
21

48
06

21
70

0
20

89
30

81
36

05
40

27
44

29
48

15
21

75
0

20
92

30
86

36
12

40
34

44
38

48
24

21
80

0
20

95
30

91
36

18
40

42
44

46
48

33
21

85
0

20
98

30
96

36
25

40
49

44
54

48
42

21
90

0
21

00
31

01
36

32
40

57
44

62
48

51
21

95
0

21
03

31
06

36
39

40
64

44
71

48
60

22
00

0
21

06
31

11
36

45
40

72
44

79
48

69
22

05
0

21
09

31
16

36
52

40
79

44
87

48
78

22
10

0
21

12
31

21
36

59
40

87
44

96
48

87
22

15
0

21
15

31
26

36
66

40
94

45
04

48
96

22
20

0
21

18
31

31
36

72
41

02
45

12
49

05
22

25
0

21
21

31
36

36
79

41
09

45
20

49
14

22
30

0
21

24
31

41
36

86
41

17
45

29
49

23
22

35
0

21
27

31
46

36
92

41
24

45
37

49
32

22
40

0
21

29
31

51
36

99
41

32
45

45
49

41
22

45
0

21
32

31
56

37
06

41
40

45
53

49
50

22
50

0
21

35
31

61
37

13
41

47
45

62
49

59
22

55
0

21
38

31
66

37
19

41
55

45
70

49
68

22
60

0
21

41
31

71
37

26
41

62
45

78
49

77
22

65
0

21
44

31
76

37
33

41
70

45
87

49
86

22
70

0
21

47
31

81
37

40
41

77
45

95
49

95
22

75
0

21
50

31
86

37
46

41
85

46
03

50
04

22
80

0
21

53
31

91
37

53
41

92
46

11
50

13
22

85
0

21
56

31
96

37
60

42
00

46
20

50
22

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 1
3/

20

34 of 69



W
or

ki
ng

 D
ra

ft
 (S

ep
t. 

24
, 2

02
0)

Si
de

-b
y-

Si
de

 C
om

pa
ris

on
s

Combined Gross Income

Existing

BR5

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

6 
Ch

ild
re

n
1 

Ch
ild

2 
Ch

ild
re

n
3 

Ch
ild

re
n

4 
Ch

ild
re

n
5 

Ch
ild

re
n

22
90

0
21

59
32

01
37

67
42

07
46

28
50

31
22

95
0

21
61

32
06

37
73

42
15

46
36

50
40

23
00

0
21

64
32

11
37

80
42

22
46

45
50

49
23

05
0

21
67

32
16

37
87

42
30

46
53

50
58

23
10

0
21

70
32

21
37

93
42

37
46

61
50

67
23

15
0

21
73

32
26

38
00

42
45

46
69

50
76

23
20

0
21

76
32

31
38

07
42

52
46

78
50

85
23

25
0

21
79

32
36

38
14

42
60

46
86

50
94

23
30

0
21

82
32

41
38

20
42

67
46

94
51

03
23

35
0

21
85

32
46

38
27

42
75

47
02

51
12

23
40

0
21

88
32

51
38

34
42

82
47

11
51

21
23

45
0

21
91

32
56

38
41

42
90

47
19

51
30

23
50

0
21

93
32

61
38

47
42

97
47

27
51

39
23

55
0

21
96

32
66

38
54

43
05

47
36

51
48

23
60

0
21

99
32

71
38

61
43

13
47

44
51

57
23

65
0

22
02

32
76

38
68

43
20

47
52

51
66

23
70

0
22

05
32

81
38

74
43

28
47

60
51

74
23

75
0

22
08

32
86

38
81

43
35

47
69

51
83

23
80

0
22

11
32

91
38

88
43

43
47

77
51

92
23

85
0

22
14

32
96

38
94

43
50

47
85

52
01

23
90

0
22

17
33

01
39

01
43

58
47

93
52

10
23

95
0

22
20

33
06

39
08

43
65

48
02

52
19

24
00

0
22

22
33

11
39

15
43

73
48

10
52

28
24

05
0

22
25

33
16

39
21

43
80

48
18

52
37

24
10

0
22

28
33

21
39

28
43

88
48

27
52

46
24

15
0

22
31

33
26

39
35

43
95

48
35

52
55

24
20

0
22

34
33

31
39

42
44

03
48

43
52

64
24

25
0

22
37

33
36

39
48

44
10

48
51

52
73

24
30

0
22

40
33

41
39

55
44

18
48

60
52

82
24

35
0

22
43

33
46

39
62

44
25

48
68

52
91

24
40

0
22

46
33

51
39

69
44

33
48

76
53

00
24

45
0

22
49

33
56

39
75

44
40

48
84

53
09

24
50

0
22

52
33

61
39

82
44

48
48

93
53

18
24

55
0

22
54

33
66

39
89

44
55

49
01

53
27

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 1
4/

20

35 of 69



W
or

ki
ng

 D
ra

ft
 (S

ep
t. 

24
, 2

02
0)

Si
de

-b
y-

Si
de

 C
om

pa
ris

on
s

Combined Gross Income

Existing

BR5

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

6 
Ch

ild
re

n
1 

Ch
ild

2 
Ch

ild
re

n
3 

Ch
ild

re
n

4 
Ch

ild
re

n
5 

Ch
ild

re
n

24
60

0
22

57
33

71
39

96
44

63
49

09
53

36
24

65
0

22
60

33
76

40
02

44
71

49
18

53
45

24
70

0
22

63
33

81
40

09
44

78
49

26
53

54
24

75
0

22
66

33
86

40
16

44
86

49
34

53
63

24
80

0
22

69
33

91
40

22
44

93
49

42
53

72
24

85
0

22
72

33
96

40
29

45
01

49
51

53
81

24
90

0
22

75
34

00
40

36
45

08
49

59
53

90
24

95
0

22
78

34
05

40
43

45
16

49
67

53
99

25
00

0
22

81
34

10
40

49
45

23
49

75
54

08
25

05
0

22
84

34
15

40
56

45
31

49
84

54
17

25
10

0
22

86
34

20
40

63
45

38
49

92
54

26
25

15
0

22
89

34
25

40
70

45
46

50
00

54
35

25
20

0
22

92
34

30
40

76
45

53
50

09
54

44
25

25
0

22
95

34
35

40
83

45
61

50
17

54
53

25
30

0
22

98
34

40
40

90
45

68
50

25
54

62
25

35
0

23
01

34
45

40
97

45
76

50
33

54
71

25
40

0
23

04
34

50
41

03
45

83
50

42
54

80
25

45
0

23
07

34
55

41
10

45
91

50
50

54
89

25
50

0
23

10
34

60
41

17
45

98
50

58
54

98
25

55
0

23
13

34
65

41
23

46
06

50
66

55
07

25
60

0
23

15
34

70
41

30
46

13
50

75
55

16
25

65
0

23
18

34
75

41
37

46
21

50
83

55
25

25
70

0
23

21
34

80
41

44
46

28
50

91
55

34
25

75
0

23
24

34
85

41
50

46
36

51
00

55
43

25
80

0
23

27
34

90
41

57
46

44
51

08
55

52
25

85
0

23
30

34
95

41
64

46
51

51
16

55
61

25
90

0
23

33
35

00
41

71
46

59
51

24
55

70
25

95
0

23
36

35
05

41
77

46
66

51
33

55
79

26
00

0
23

39
35

10
41

84
46

74
51

41
55

88
26

05
0

23
42

35
15

41
91

46
81

51
49

55
97

26
10

0
23

45
35

20
41

98
46

89
51

58
56

06
26

15
0

23
47

35
25

42
04

46
96

51
66

56
15

26
20

0
23

50
35

30
42

11
47

04
51

74
56

24
26

25
0

23
53

35
35

42
18

47
11

51
82

56
33

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 1
5/

20

36 of 69



W
or

ki
ng

 D
ra

ft
 (S

ep
t. 

24
, 2

02
0)

Si
de

-b
y-

Si
de

 C
om

pa
ris

on
s

Combined Gross Income

Existing

BR5

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

6 
Ch

ild
re

n
1 

Ch
ild

2 
Ch

ild
re

n
3 

Ch
ild

re
n

4 
Ch

ild
re

n
5 

Ch
ild

re
n

26
30

0
23

56
35

40
42

24
47

19
51

91
56

42
26

35
0

23
59

35
45

42
31

47
26

51
99

56
51

26
40

0
23

62
35

50
42

38
47

34
52

07
56

60
26

45
0

23
65

35
55

42
45

47
41

52
15

56
69

26
50

0
23

68
35

60
42

51
47

49
52

24
56

78
26

55
0

23
71

35
65

42
58

47
56

52
32

56
87

26
60

0
23

74
35

70
42

65
47

64
52

40
56

96
26

65
0

23
77

35
75

42
72

47
71

52
49

57
05

26
70

0
23

79
35

80
42

78
47

79
52

57
57

14
26

75
0

23
82

35
85

42
85

47
86

52
65

57
23

26
80

0
23

85
35

90
42

92
47

94
52

73
57

32
26

85
0

23
88

35
95

42
99

48
01

52
82

57
41

26
90

0
23

91
36

00
43

05
48

09
52

90
57

50
26

95
0

23
94

36
05

43
12

48
17

52
98

57
59

27
00

0
23

97
36

10
43

19
48

24
53

06
57

68
27

05
0

24
00

36
15

43
25

48
32

53
15

57
77

27
10

0
24

03
36

20
43

32
48

39
53

23
57

86
27

15
0

24
06

36
25

43
39

48
47

53
31

57
95

27
20

0
24

08
36

30
43

46
48

54
53

40
58

04
27

25
0

24
11

36
35

43
52

48
62

53
48

58
13

27
30

0
24

14
36

40
43

59
48

69
53

56
58

22
27

35
0

24
17

36
45

43
66

48
77

53
64

58
31

27
40

0
24

20
36

50
43

73
48

84
53

73
58

40
27

45
0

24
23

36
55

43
79

48
92

53
81

58
49

27
50

0
24

26
36

60
43

86
48

99
53

89
58

58
27

55
0

24
29

36
65

43
93

49
07

53
97

58
67

27
60

0
24

32
36

70
44

00
49

14
54

06
58

76
27

65
0

24
35

36
75

44
06

49
22

54
14

58
85

27
70

0
24

38
36

80
44

13
49

29
54

22
58

94
27

75
0

24
40

36
85

44
20

49
37

54
31

59
03

27
80

0
24

43
36

90
44

26
49

44
54

39
59

12
27

85
0

24
46

36
95

44
33

49
52

54
47

59
21

27
90

0
24

49
37

00
44

40
49

59
54

55
59

30
27

95
0

24
52

37
05

44
47

49
67

54
64

59
39

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 1
6/

20

37 of 69



W
or

ki
ng

 D
ra

ft
 (S

ep
t. 

24
, 2

02
0)

Si
de

-b
y-

Si
de

 C
om

pa
ris

on
s

Combined Gross Income

Existing

BR5

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

6 
Ch

ild
re

n
1 

Ch
ild

2 
Ch

ild
re

n
3 

Ch
ild

re
n

4 
Ch

ild
re

n
5 

Ch
ild

re
n

28
00

0
24

55
37

10
44

53
49

74
54

72
59

48
28

05
0

24
58

37
15

44
60

49
82

54
80

59
57

28
10

0
24

61
37

20
44

67
49

90
54

88
59

66
28

15
0

24
64

37
25

44
74

49
97

54
97

59
75

28
20

0
24

67
37

30
44

80
50

05
55

05
59

84
28

25
0

24
70

37
35

44
87

50
12

55
13

59
93

28
30

0
24

72
37

40
44

94
50

20
55

22
60

02
28

35
0

24
75

37
45

45
01

50
27

55
30

60
11

28
40

0
24

78
37

50
45

07
50

35
55

38
60

20
28

45
0

24
81

37
55

45
14

50
42

55
46

60
29

28
50

0
24

84
37

60
45

21
50

50
55

55
60

38
28

55
0

24
87

37
65

45
28

50
57

55
63

60
47

28
60

0
24

90
37

70
45

34
50

65
55

71
60

56
28

65
0

24
93

37
75

45
41

50
72

55
79

60
65

28
70

0
24

96
37

80
45

48
50

80
55

88
60

74
28

75
0

24
99

37
85

45
54

50
87

55
96

60
83

28
80

0
25

02
37

90
45

61
50

95
56

04
60

92
28

85
0

25
04

37
95

45
68

51
02

56
13

61
01

28
90

0
25

07
38

00
45

75
51

10
56

21
61

10
28

95
0

25
10

38
05

45
81

51
17

56
29

61
19

29
00

0
25

13
38

10
45

88
51

25
56

37
61

28
29

05
0

25
16

38
15

45
95

51
32

56
46

61
37

29
10

0
25

19
38

20
46

02
51

40
56

54
61

46
29

15
0

25
22

38
25

46
08

51
47

56
62

61
55

29
20

0
25

25
38

30
46

15
51

55
56

71
61

64
29

25
0

25
28

38
35

46
22

51
63

56
79

61
73

29
30

0
25

31
38

40
46

29
51

70
56

87
61

82
29

35
0

25
33

38
45

46
35

51
78

56
95

61
91

29
40

0
25

36
38

50
46

42
51

85
57

04
62

00
29

45
0

25
39

38
55

46
49

51
93

57
12

62
09

29
50

0
25

42
38

60
46

55
52

00
57

20
62

18
29

55
0

25
45

38
65

46
62

52
08

57
28

62
27

29
60

0
25

48
38

70
46

69
52

15
57

37
62

36
29

65
0

25
51

38
75

46
76

52
23

57
45

62
45

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 1
7/

20

38 of 69



W
or

ki
ng

 D
ra

ft
 (S

ep
t. 

24
, 2

02
0)

Si
de

-b
y-

Si
de

 C
om

pa
ris

on
s

Combined Gross Income

Existing

BR5

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

6 
Ch

ild
re

n
1 

Ch
ild

2 
Ch

ild
re

n
3 

Ch
ild

re
n

4 
Ch

ild
re

n
5 

Ch
ild

re
n

29
70

0
25

54
38

80
46

82
52

30
57

53
62

54
29

75
0

25
57

38
85

46
89

52
38

57
62

62
63

29
80

0
25

60
38

90
46

96
52

45
57

70
62

72
29

85
0

25
63

38
95

47
03

52
53

57
78

62
81

29
90

0
25

65
39

00
47

09
52

60
57

86
62

90
29

95
0

25
68

39
05

47
16

52
68

57
95

62
99

30
00

0
25

71
39

10
47

23
52

75
58

03
63

08
30

05
0

25
74

39
15

47
30

52
83

58
11

63
17

30
10

0
25

77
39

20
47

36
52

90
58

19
63

26
30

15
0

25
80

39
25

47
43

52
98

58
28

63
35

30
20

0
25

83
39

30
47

50
53

05
58

36
63

44
30

25
0

25
86

39
35

47
56

53
13

58
44

63
53

30
30

0
25

89
39

40
47

63
53

20
58

53
63

62
30

35
0

25
92

39
45

47
70

53
28

58
61

63
71

30
40

0
25

95
39

50
47

77
53

36
58

69
63

80
30

45
0

25
97

39
55

47
83

53
43

58
77

63
89

30
50

0
26

00
39

60
47

90
53

51
58

86
63

98
30

55
0

26
03

39
65

47
97

53
58

58
94

64
07

30
60

0
26

06
39

70
48

04
53

66
59

02
64

16
30

65
0

26
09

39
75

48
10

53
73

59
10

64
25

30
70

0
26

12
39

80
48

17
53

81
59

19
64

34
30

75
0

26
15

39
85

48
24

53
88

59
27

64
43

30
80

0
26

18
39

90
48

31
53

96
59

35
64

52
30

85
0

26
21

39
95

48
37

54
03

59
44

64
61

30
90

0
26

24
40

00
48

44
54

11
59

52
64

70
30

95
0

26
26

40
05

48
51

54
18

59
60

64
79

31
00

0
26

29
40

10
48

57
54

26
59

68
64

88
31

05
0

26
32

40
15

48
64

54
33

59
77

64
97

31
10

0
26

35
40

20
48

71
54

41
59

85
65

06
31

15
0

26
38

40
25

48
78

54
48

59
93

65
15

31
20

0
26

41
40

30
48

84
54

56
60

01
65

24
31

25
0

26
44

40
35

48
91

54
63

60
10

65
33

31
30

0
26

47
40

40
48

98
54

71
60

18
65

42
31

35
0

26
50

40
45

49
05

54
78

60
26

65
51

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 1
8/

20

39 of 69



W
or

ki
ng

 D
ra

ft
 (S

ep
t. 

24
, 2

02
0)

Si
de

-b
y-

Si
de

 C
om

pa
ris

on
s

Combined Gross Income

Existing

BR5

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

6 
Ch

ild
re

n
1 

Ch
ild

2 
Ch

ild
re

n
3 

Ch
ild

re
n

4 
Ch

ild
re

n
5 

Ch
ild

re
n

31
40

0
26

53
40

50
49

11
54

86
60

35
65

60
31

45
0

26
56

40
55

49
18

54
93

60
43

65
69

31
50

0
26

58
40

60
49

25
55

01
60

51
65

78
31

55
0

26
61

40
65

49
32

55
09

60
59

65
87

31
60

0
26

64
40

70
49

38
55

16
60

68
65

96
31

65
0

26
67

40
75

49
45

55
24

60
76

66
05

31
70

0
26

70
40

80
49

52
55

31
60

84
66

14
31

75
0

26
73

40
85

49
58

55
39

60
92

66
23

31
80

0
26

76
40

90
49

65
55

46
61

01
66

32
31

85
0

26
79

40
95

49
72

55
54

61
09

66
41

31
90

0
26

82
41

00
49

79
55

61
61

17
66

50
31

95
0

26
85

41
05

49
85

55
69

61
26

66
59

32
00

0
26

88
41

10
49

92
55

76
61

34
66

68
32

05
0

26
90

41
15

49
99

55
84

61
42

66
77

32
10

0
26

93
41

20
50

06
55

91
61

50
66

85
32

15
0

26
96

41
25

50
12

55
99

61
59

66
94

32
20

0
26

99
41

30
50

19
56

06
61

67
67

03
32

25
0

27
02

41
35

50
26

56
14

61
75

67
12

32
30

0
27

05
41

40
50

33
56

21
61

84
67

21
32

35
0

27
08

41
45

50
39

56
29

61
92

67
30

32
40

0
27

11
41

50
50

46
56

36
62

00
67

39
32

45
0

27
14

41
55

50
53

56
44

62
08

67
48

32
50

0
27

17
41

60
50

59
56

51
62

17
67

57
32

55
0

27
19

41
65

50
66

56
59

62
25

67
66

32
60

0
27

22
41

70
50

73
56

67
62

33
67

75
32

65
0

27
25

41
75

50
80

56
74

62
41

67
84

32
70

0
27

28
41

80
50

86
56

82
62

50
67

93
32

75
0

27
31

41
85

50
93

56
89

62
58

68
02

32
80

0
27

34
41

90
51

00
56

97
62

66
68

11
32

85
0

27
37

41
95

51
07

57
04

62
75

68
20

32
90

0
27

40
42

00
51

13
57

12
62

83
68

29
32

95
0

27
43

42
05

51
20

57
19

62
91

68
38

33
00

0
27

46
42

10
51

27
57

27
62

99
68

47
33

05
0

27
49

42
15

51
34

57
34

63
08

68
56

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 1
9/

20

40 of 69



W
or

ki
ng

 D
ra

ft
 (S

ep
t. 

24
, 2

02
0)

Si
de

-b
y-

Si
de

 C
om

pa
ris

on
s

Combined Gross Income

Existing

BR5

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

Existing

BR5(with updated SSR)

Dollar Change BR5

Percentage Change BR5

6 
Ch

ild
re

n
1 

Ch
ild

2 
Ch

ild
re

n
3 

Ch
ild

re
n

4 
Ch

ild
re

n
5 

Ch
ild

re
n

33
10

0
27

51
42

20
51

40
57

42
63

16
68

65
33

15
0

27
54

42
25

51
47

57
49

63
24

68
74

33
20

0
27

57
42

30
51

54
57

57
63

32
68

83
33

25
0

27
60

42
35

51
61

57
64

63
41

68
92

33
30

0
27

63
42

40
51

67
57

72
63

49
69

01
33

35
0

27
66

42
45

51
74

57
79

63
57

69
10

33
40

0
27

69
42

49
51

81
57

87
63

66
69

19
33

45
0

27
72

42
54

51
87

57
94

63
74

69
28

33
50

0
27

75
42

59
51

94
58

02
63

82
69

37
33

55
0

27
78

42
64

52
01

58
09

63
90

69
46

33
60

0
27

81
42

69
52

08
58

17
63

99
69

55
33

65
0

27
83

42
74

52
14

58
24

64
07

69
64

33
70

0
27

86
42

79
52

21
58

32
64

15
69

73
33

75
0

27
89

42
84

52
28

58
40

64
23

69
82

33
80

0
27

92
42

89
52

35
58

47
64

32
69

91
33

85
0

27
95

42
94

52
41

58
55

64
40

70
00

33
90

0
27

98
42

99
52

48
58

62
64

48
70

09
33

95
0

28
01

43
04

52
55

58
70

64
57

70
18

34
00

0
28

04
43

09
52

62
58

77
64

65
70

27
34

05
0

28
07

43
14

52
68

58
85

64
73

70
36

34
10

0
28

10
43

19
52

75
58

92
64

81
70

45

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 2
0/

20

41 of 69



11. ADJUSTMENT FOR COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH PARENTING TIME

Because the Schedule of Basic Child Support Obligations is based on expenditures for children in 
intact households, there is no consideration for costs associated with parenting time. When 
parenting time is exercised by the parent with less parenting time, a portion of the costs for children 
normally expended by the primary residential parent shifts to the other parent. Accordingly, unless 
it is apparent from the circumstances that the parent with less parenting time will not incur costs 
for the children during parenting time, when proof establishes that parenting time is or is expected 
to be exercised by that parent, an adjustment shall be made to that parent's proportionate share of 
the Total Child Support Obligation. To calculate child support in equal parenting time cases when 
both parents have parenting time of 164 days or more, see Section 12.  

For purposes of calculating parenting time days, only the time spent by a child with the parent with 
less parenting time is considered. Time that the child is in school or childcare is not considered.  

To adjust for the costs of parenting time, first determine the total annual amount of parenting time 
indicated in a court order or parenting plan or by the expectation or historical practice of the 
parents. Using the following definitions, add together each block of parenting time to arrive at the 
total number of parenting time days per year. Calculate the number of parenting time days arising 
from any block of time the child spends with the parent with less parenting time in the following 
manner:  

A. Each block of time begins and ends when that parent receives or returns the child from
the primary residential parent or from a third party with whom the primary residential
parent left the child. Third party includes, for example, a school or childcare provider.

B. Count one day of parenting time for each 24 hours within any block of time.
C. To the extent there is a period of less than 24 hours remaining in the block of time, after

all 24-hour days are counted or for any block of time which is in total less than 24 hours
in duration:

1. A period of 12 hours or more counts as one day.
2. A period of 6 to 11 hours counts as a half-day.

4. A period of 3 to 5 hours counts as a quarter-day.
5. Periods of less than 3 hours may count as a quarter-day if, during those hours, the

parent with less parenting time pays for routine expenses of the child, such as
meals.

EXAMPLES: For the purposes of these examples, mother has parenting time 130 days per year 
and father is the primary residential parent.  

1) Mother receives the child at 9:00 p.m. on Thursday evening and brings the child to school at
8:00 a.m. on Monday morning, from which father picks up the child at 3:00 p.m. on Monday.
a) 9:00 p.m. Thursday to 9:00 p.m. Sunday is three days.
b) 9:00 p.m. Sunday to 8:00 a.m. Monday is 11 hours, which equals a half day.
c) Total is 3 1⁄2 days.

42 of 69



2) Mother picks the child up from school at 3:00 p.m. Friday and returns the child to school at
8:00 a.m. on Monday.
a) 3:00 p.m. Friday to 3:00 p.m. Sunday is two days.
b) 3:00 p.m. Sunday to 8:00 a.m. Monday is 17 hours, which equals one day.
c) Total is 3 days.

3) Mother picks up child from soccer at noon on Saturday, and returns the child to father at 9:00
p.m. on Sunday.
a) Noon Saturday to noon Sunday is one day.
b) Noon Sunday to 9:00 p.m. Sunday is 9 hours, which equals 1⁄2 day.
c) Total is 1 1⁄2 days.

If the children have different parenting time schedules, then see Section 16 to determine the 
parenting time adjustment or to determine if separate worksheets are required. After determining 
the total number of parenting time days, refer to “Parenting Time Table A" below. The left column 
of the table sets forth numbers of parenting time days in increasingly higher ranges. Adjacent to 
each range is an adjustment percentage. The parenting time adjustment is calculated as follows: 
locate the total number of parenting time days per year in the left column of “Parenting Time Table 
A" and select the adjustment percentage from the adjacent column. Multiply the Basic Child 
Support Obligation determined under Section 8 by the appropriate adjustment percentage. The 
number resulting from this multiplication then is subtracted from the proportionate share of the 
Total Child Support Obligation of the parent who exercises parenting time.  

Table A 

EXAMPLE: The Basic Child Support Obligation from the Schedule is $667 for two children. After 
making all applicable adjustments under Section 9, such as an adjustment for one older child, the 
Total Child Support Obligation is $700 and father’s proportionate share is 60%, or $421. Father 
has parenting time with the children a total of 100 days. On Parenting Time Table A, the range of 
days for this amount of parenting time is from 88 __ to 115 __ days. The corresponding adjustment 
percentage is .161___. Multiply the $667 Basic Child Support Obligation by .161 ___ or 
16.1___%. The resulting $107 ____ is subtracted from $421 (father’s proportionate share of the 
Total Child Support Obligation), adjusting the child support obligation to $313____.  

As the number of parenting time days approaches equal time sharing (143 days and above), certain 
costs usually incurred only in the primary residential parent’s household are assumed to be 
substantially or equally shared by both parents. These costs are for items such as the child's 
clothing and personal care items, entertainment and reading materials. If this assumption is 
rebutted by proof, for example, that such costs are not substantially or equally shared in each 
household, a deviation may be appropriate.only Parenting Time Table B must be used to calculate 
the parenting time adjustment for this range of days. Locate the total number of parenting time 
days per year in the left columns of “Parenting Time Table B" and select the adjustment percentage 
from the adjacent column. Multiply the Basic Child Support Obligation determined under Section 
8 by the appropriate adjustment percentage. The number resulting from this multiplication then is 
subtracted from the proportionate share of the Total Child Support Obligation of the parent who 
exercises parenting time.  

43 of 69



12. EQUAL PARENTING TIME

If the time spent with each parent is essentially equal, when both parents have 164 days of 
parenting time or more, the expenses of the children are equally shared, the expenses for the 
children are equally shared and adjusted gross incomes of the parents also are essentially equal, no 
child support shall be paid. Refer to the definition of parenting time in Section 11. If the parents' 
incomes are not equal, the total child support amount shall be divided equally between the two 
households and the parent owing the greater amount shall be ordered to pay what is necessary to 
achieve that equal share in the other parent's household.  

EXAMPLE: After making all applicable adjustments under Sections 9 and 13, the remaining child 
support obligation is $1,500. The parents' proportionate shares of the obligation are $1,000 and 
$500. To equalize the child support available in both households, deduct the lower amount from 
the higher amount ($1,000 - $500 = $500), then divide the balance in half ($500 ÷ 2 = $250). The 
resulting amount, $250, is paid to the parent with the lower obligation.  

44 of 69



FAMILY COURT IMPROVEMENT COMMITTEE 
 

Date of Meeting: 
 
October 15, 2020 

Type of Action Required: 
 
[  ] Formal 

Action/Request 
 
[X] Information Only 
 
[  ] Other 

Subject: 
 
Training Workgroup Report 

 
PRESENTER(S):   Michael D. Peterson  
 
DISCUSSION:   Status of Training “Notebook” for Judges 
 
The Family Court Improvement Committee is working to assemble a comprehensive resource for 
Arizona family court judges to assist them in helping families who are involved in the court 
system.  To that end, we are assembling a digital notebook to provide judges and judicial staff 
with the means to quickly obtain and immediately apply legal precedent, current best practices, 
and interpersonal communication techniques to the courtroom. 
  
We have initially identified the following as areas that would be beneficial to address in this 
resource: 
  

Section 1: Compassion Fatigue & Self Care Strategies 
Section 2: The Trauma-Informed Court Room 
Section 3: Legal Precedent 
Section 4: Addressing Domestic Violence & Covert Signs 
Section 5: Noticing Mental Health Signs & Symptoms 
Section 6: Advanced Interpersonal Skills 

  
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION OR REQUEST (IF ANY):    Input from the FCIC regarding topics 
and resources for Arizona family court judges.  (Information Only). 
 

45 of 69



46 of 69



FAMILY COURT IMPROVEMENT COMMITTEE 

Date of Meeting: 

October 15, 2020 

Type of Action Required: 

[X ] Formal 
Action/Request 

[  ] Information Only 

[  ] Other 

Subject: 

Proposed Form  to Include in 
ARFLP Rule 97  

APPLICATION and 
AFFIDAVIT FOR ENTRY 
of DEFAULT IN FAMILY 
CASES 

PRESENTER(S):  Janet Sell, Forms Sub-Committee 

DISCUSSION:  This form of APPLICATION and AFFIDAVIT FOR ENTRY of DEFAULT 
IN FAMILY CASES was developed to assist with implementation of the recent changes to Rule 
44. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION OR REQUEST (IF ANY): 

Request  a vote of approval by FCIC for submission to the Supreme Court as a change to the Arizona 
Rules of Family Law Procedure. It would be added to Rule 97 where all the standard Family Law forms 
reside.   

47 of 69



48 of 69



Person Filing:         
Address (if not protected):       
City, State, Zip Code:       
Telephone:         
Email Address:        
ATLAS Number:        
Lawyer’s Bar Number:       
Representing [  ] Self, without an Attorney or [  ] Attorney for [  ] Petitioner OR [  ] Respondent 
 

SUPERIOR COURT OF ARIZONA 
IN       COUNTY 

 
  
(Name of Petitioner / Party A) 
 
  
(Name of Respondent / Party B) 
 

 Case Number:   
 

APPLICATION and AFFIDAVIT FOR 
ENTRY of DEFAULT IN FAMILY CASES 

NOTICE: THIS IS AN IMPORTANT COURT DOCUMENT. When this document is properly 
completed and filed, Default has been applied for and entered. The Default will be effective ten (10) 
court business days after the filing of this completed document, unless the Respondent files an 
Answer/Response or otherwise defends before the ten court business day period expires. In this case do 
not count Saturdays, Sundays and court holidays to calculate court business days. 
 
I am the Petitioner in this court case. I understand and make the following statements under oath or by 
affirmation. I give notice that I am requesting entry of default against the other party, the Respondent, 
because the Respondent has not filed an Answer/Response. 
 
1. Name of other party against whom I seek this default: 

   
has failed to respond within the time allowed by the Arizona Rules of Family Law Procedures, 
and (choose one) 
[  ] the last known mailing address for the Party in default is  

 ;  
OR 
[  ] I do not know the whereabouts of the Party in default. 

 
2. The name of the attorney known to represent the Party in default, either in this action or in a 

related matter, is 
  , 
(whether or not the attorney has formally appeared)  

For Clerk’s Use Only 

49 of 69



OR 
[  ] The other party is not represented by an attorney or I do not know the identity and 

address of any such attorney. 
 

3. Evidence of Service (this must be true) 
[  ] I attached to this Application a copy of the proof or acceptance of service establishing 

the date and manner of service on the Party in default. 
OR 

The Party in Default was served as follows: 

Date of Service ______________ 

Date  Proof of Service was filed with the court  __________________ 

Method of Service 

[  ] acceptance of service  

[  ] delivered to the individual personally 

[  ]  leaving a copy at the individual’s dwelling or usual place of abode with someone of suitable age 
and discretion residing there 

[  ] delivered by certified mail or national courier service and obtaining a return receipt. 

[  ] with the court’s permission, the person was served by: 

 [  ]  Publication 

 [  ]  Alternative service including: 

 ______________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________ 

 
4. Spousal Maintenance (choose one)  

[  ] Does not apply. 
OR 
[  ] I attached a completed “Default Information for Spousal Maintenance” form to the end of 

this “Application,” since I am asking for spousal maintenance and will proceed by 
motion without a hearing. 

 
5. SERVICE MEMBERS CIVIL RELIEF ACT: The Party in default is either: (choose one) 

[   ] not in the active military service of the United States  
OR 
[  ] has waived his/her rights under the Service Members Civil Relief Act (formerly “Soldiers 

and Sailor’s Civil Relief Act”). 

50 of 69



6. CERTIFICATE of MAILING:
As required by Arizona Rules of Family Law Procedures Rule 44(a):
a. Party in default: (must choose one)

[  ] I will mail a copy of this “Application and affidavit for Default” and attachments
to the Party in default, at the last known mailing address listed below, on the day I 
file this “Application” with the Clerk of Superior Court – even if the Party in 
default is represented by an attorney: 

(Mailing address, city, state, and zip code) 
OR 
[  ] I do not know the whereabouts of the Party in default. 

b. Attorney for Party in default: (must choose one)
[  ] I will mail a copy of this “Application and affidavit for Default” to the attorney of

the Party in default, (whether or not that attorney has formally appeared in the 
action) on the day I file this “Application:” 

(Mailing address, city, state, and zip code) 

OR 
[  ] I do not know the identity and address of any such attorney. 

51 of 69



c. Other parties who have appear in this case (must choose one) 
[  ] I will mail a copy of this “Application and affidavit for Default” to all other 

parties who have appeared in this action, on the day I file this Application at the 
Clerk of Superior Court or soon thereafter. 
  
  

   (Mailing address, city, state, and zip code) 
 

OR 
[  ] No other parties have appeared in this action. 
 

BY SIGNING BELOW, I swear or affirm that the information above is true and correct. 
 
 
               
Date        Signature 
 
STATE OF      
 
COUNTY OF       
 
Subscribed and sworn to or affirmed before me this:   (date) 
 
by         . 
 
 
               
 (Notary seal)      Deputy Clerk of Superior Court or Notary Public 
 

WARNING 
1. If the Party in default fails to file a responsive pleading or otherwise defend this action 

within 10 working days after the filing of this Application, A DEFAULT JUDGMENT 
MAY BE ENTERED. 

2. Petitioner is responsible for contacting the court to schedule the default hearing and must 
still attend the default hearing at the court UNLESS Petitioner qualifies, applies for and 
completes the process to obtain a default decree without a hearing pursuant to A.R.F.L.P 44 
et seq.1. 

3. A DEFAULT HEARING WILL NOT BE SCHEDULED IF THIS APPLICATION AND 
AFFIDAVIT FOR ENTRY OF DEFAULT IS MISSING INFORMATION OR NOT 
COMPLETED CORRECTLY. 

52 of 69



FAMILY COURT IMPROVEMENT COMMITTEE 

Date of Meeting: 

October 15, 2020 

Type of Action Required: 

[X] Formal
Action/Request

[  ] Information Only 

[  ] Other 

Subject: 

Rule Change Petition, R-19-
0047, Rule 35, Rules of 
Protective Order Procedure 

PRESENTER(S):  Judge Bruce Cohen 

DISCUSSION:  This matter has been referred to the Family Court Improvement Committee for 
recommendations.  Briefly, the amendment would modify the Arizona Rule of Protective Order 
Procedure 35 to prohibit courts from issuing injunctions against harassment that include minor 
children if the injunction would or may impact a family court order involving the same children.  
The Supreme Court, at its August Rules Agenda meeting, referred this petition to the FCIC and 
requested input on a procedural solution to this issue. 

Judge Cohen will inform the membership of the issues that need to be addressed within ARPOP 
and ARFLP. Please review the following document titled “The IAH/Parenting Order 
Conundrum.” 

RECOMMENDED ACTION OR REQUEST (IF ANY): Refer to the Statutes and Rules 
Workgroup for recommendations. 

53 of 69



54 of 69



 

The IAH/Parenting Order Conundrum 

Judge Bruce R. Cohen 

October 12, 2020 

 

The issue relates to what to do when an IAH between a third party and 
a parent impacts a parenting order for a non-party to the IAH who is the 
parent of the child.  The major obstacle in creating a uniform order is that 
one of the parties to the IAH is not a party to the Title 25 action. 

The following is the existing statutory and rule authority that impacts 
these circumstances: 

ARS Section 12-1809(A) 

A. A person may file a verified petition with a magistrate, justice of the peace or superior court 
judge for an injunction prohibiting harassment. If the person is a minor, the parent, 
legal guardian or person who has legal custody of the minor shall file the petition 
unless the court determines otherwise. The petition shall name the parent, guardian 
or custodian as the plaintiff, and the minor is a specifically designated person for the 
purposes of subsection F of this section. If a person is either temporarily or 
permanently unable to request an injunction, a third party may request an injunction 
on behalf of the plaintiff. After the request, the judicial officer shall determine if the 
third party is an appropriate requesting party for the plaintiff. Notwithstanding the 
location of the plaintiff or defendant, any court in this state may issue or enforce an 
injunction against harassment. 

 

ARPOP Rule 35. Legal Decision-Making and Parenting Time 
 

(a) Provisions for Legal Decision-Making and Parenting Time. Except as otherwise 
provided in this rule, a protective order cannot contain provisions regarding legal decision-
making or parenting time issues. Legal issues such as maternity, paternity, child support, 

55 of 69



legal decision-making, parenting time, dissolution of marriage, or legal separation may be 
addressed only by the superior court in a separate action under A.R.S. Title 25. 
(b) Contact Between a Child and a Defendant Who Have a Legal Relationship. Before 
granting a protective order prohibiting contact with a child with whom the defendant has a 
legal relationship, the judicial officer must consider: 
(1) whether the child may be harmed if the defendant is permitted to maintain contact with 
the child, and 
(2) whether the child may be endangered if there is contact outside the presence of the 
plaintiff. 
(c) Provisions for Parenting Time and Child Exchanges. 
(1) A limited jurisdiction court that issues an order prohibiting contact with the plaintiff 
cannot include exceptions that allow the defendant to come near or contact the plaintiff in 
person for legal decision-making or parenting time with a child. A limited jurisdiction court 
may allow contact by mail or e-mail to arrange parenting time and may provide for child 
exchanges under circumstances not involving contact with the plaintiff in person. 
(2) A superior court judicial officer may issue a protective order or modify an existing 
protective order that includes an exception allowing the defendant to come near or contact 
the plaintiff in person to implement a legal decision-making or a parenting time order after 
considering the following factors and making specific findings on the record: 
(A) feasible alternatives regarding contact to carry out the legal decision-making or parenting 
time order, such as exchanges at a protected setting, a public facility or other safe haven, or 
through a third person; 
(B) the parties' wishes; 
(C) each party's history of domestic violence; 
(D) the safety of the parties and the child; 
(E) each party's behavioral health; and 
(F) reports and recommendations of behavioral health professionals. 
(d) Modification of an Existing Protective Order. Any change made by a superior court 
judicial officer to an existing protective order must be included in a modified protective order. 
Each change must be set forth in the modified protective order with sufficient detail to assure 
understanding and compliance by the parties and ease of enforcement by law enforcement 
officers. The superior court judicial officer must obtain an acceptance of service signed by the 
defendant if the parties are present at the time the modification is made. If the defendant 

56 of 69



refuses to sign an acceptance of service, the judicial officer must have the defendant served 
in open court in accordance with Rule 31. 
(e) Active Legal Decision-Making Order. When a family law action is not pending but there is 
an active legal decision-making order issued by an Arizona court that involves a child of the 
defendant, a limited jurisdiction court may issue an ex parte protective order but then must 
transfer the matter to the superior court in accordance with procedures set forth in Rule 34. 
 

ARFLP Rule 91.6. Other Post-Judgment Petitions 
 
A party seeking any other post-judgment relief not specifically addressed in Rule 91 or Rules 
91.1 through 91.5 must file a petition in compliance with Rule 91 that states detailed facts 
supporting the requested relief; and the specific legal authority that permits the court to 
grant the relief requested. 
 

The solution must include the ability to protect a child through an IAH, 
when appropriate, even though the resulting order may have a de facto 
impact on an existing family court order.  But the solution must also include 
the opportunity for the resulting conflict between implementation of the IAH 
while also implementing the parenting order entered under Title 25.  

This kind of issue is process-related.  Based upon discussion 
summarized below, there was consensus to address this as a rule change 
rather than a statutory issue.  Based thereon, the issue would likely need 
to be addressed both in ARPOP and ARFLP.   

In doing so, we must recognize that Rule 35(E) of ARPOP applies ONLY 
when the child impacted is the child of the defendant.  For an IAH, the 
circumstances we are contemplating is that a parent of the child will be the 
plaintiff and the defendant in the IAH action will be a third party.  However, 
the restriction on contact between the child and the third party may impact 
that rights of the non-party parent of the child.    

The following is literally a first stab suggestion to address this issue 
but which will require extensive review and further discussion.  With that 

57 of 69



noted, changes or additions to the applicable rules are noted in red as 
follows: 

ARPROP Rule 35 
 
(e) Active Legal Decision-Making Order.  
(1) Defendant is Parent of Child Who is Subject to Parenting Order.  When a family law 
action is not pending but there is an active legal decision-making order issued by an Arizona 
court that involves a child of the defendant, a limited jurisdiction court may issue an ex parte 
protective order but then must transfer the matter to the superior court in accordance with 
procedures set forth in Rule 34. 
(2) Defendant is a Non-Parent of Child Who is Subject to Parenting Order.  When an 
Injunction Against Harassment is ordered and impacts an active legal decision-making order 
issued by an Arizona court that involves a child who is not the legal or biological child of the 
defendant, the limited jurisdiction court may issue an ex parte protective order and conduct 
any contested hearings thereon.  To the extent that such an order impacts the parenting 
rights of a person who is not a party to the Injunction Against Harassment action, the remedy 
for such a person is under Rule 91 of the ARFLP. 
 

ARFLP Rule 91.6. Orders that Impact Parenting Orders 
 
In the event an order is issued by a court of competent jurisdiction in an action not brought 
under Title 25, such as a proceeding for an Injunction Against Harassment, (“Order”) and that 
order impacts the parenting rights of a party to an active legal decision-making  order issued 
by an Arizona Court, the parent impacted by the terms of the order may petition for relief 
from the order under the family court case number.  The petition shall be in compliance with 
Rule 91 and must state details supporting the requested relief; and the specific legal authority 
that permits the court to grant the relief requested.   
 
If the Order was issued by a limited jurisdiction court and a party to the order is not a party to 
the family court proceeding, the Superior Court may:  
 

(a) direct the limited jurisdiction court to transfer the order to the Superior Court 
under a newly assigned case number;  

58 of 69



(b) join the third party to the proceeding in the Superior Court but only in the newly 
assigned case number and not as a party to the family court case;  
(c) schedule a concurrent proceeding between the family court case number and the 
newly assigned case number; 
(d) direct that notice be provided to the third party of the hearing;  
(e) conduct such proceedings as are necessary to reconcile the order with any existing 
legal decision-making order issued by an Arizona court; 
(f) modify the order as deemed appropriate to reconcile the terms of the order with 
the terms of an active legal decision-making order.  

 
ARFLP Rule 91.7. Other Post-Judgment Petitions 
 
A party seeking any other post-judgment relief not specifically addressed in Rule 91 or Rules 
91.1 through 91.6 must file a petition in compliance with Rule 91 that states detailed facts 
supporting the requested relief; and the specific legal authority that permits the court to 
grant the relief requested. 
 

As I cautioned above, this is a first draft.  It is critical that the same 
kind of thoughtful discussion that is summarized below continue so that a 
workable solution to this identified concern can be achieved. 

 

 

The following are the notes from the prior meeting on this subject: 

 

McMurdie—reading order from SCT about rule petition. The court is seeking a process solution. 
Perhaps an injunction that protects a child that directs person to seek relief from family 
court within a specified number of days. 

Finn—discussed at LJC meeting in March. Directed to capture content of discussion at two LJC 
meetings. Not an official vote at LJC. Did not agree to sign on to Williams’ petition. 
Concern about leaving children unprotected. Major concern is that the child may be in 
danger. Parent or significant other who has duty to protect, this rule would prevent any 
judge from protecting children on IAH. Can’t transfer to superior court because parties do 

59 of 69



not match those in family court case. May have GF against Mother but don’t have both 
parents. If we could transfer like OP. Protection of child is paramount. 

Bayardi—we would be carving out exception to protective order rules and statutes where the 
person would not be able to have IAH against them protecting the child because the non-
family court couldn’t do, family court couldn’t do because person isn’t party in family 
court case. No order directly toward the offender protecting the child from that person. 
Immunity leave vulnerable population of child unprotected. Puts judge in terrible position 
where child is abused/sexually abused and leave us powerless to act. Risk of substantial 
harm—none of that matters. Understands parent should file Title 25, but we won’t always 
have a parent in front of us. Not all courts are close to superior courts. If we can issue the 
order and then have it reviewed by family court. Will or may impact parenting—almost 
anything may impact. We have no way of knowing that. Calls for judge to enter legal 
fiction—language on inadvertence. We’re not talking about mistakes—we want to 
protect child. Should we say we’re making a mistake? I understand why there needs to be 
review. All court to enter order and send to family court for review. 

Cohen—fabulous points. First iteration of rule was that the LJ court would enter the IAH and 
then transfer to superior court as soon as knew it affected parenting time order. What case 
would we assign that to? Involved 3d party to parenting time case. Are we adding 
indispensable 3d party to the case? Does it become part of family court case? No. if it 
gets own case, who’s responsible for consolidating? Recognition by LJ courts that they’re 
being dragged into custody cases between issues between parent and new relationship. 
Unfair to LJ courts. They aren’t making decisions under T25. Making under T12 for 
IAH. Not considering all factors that family court has to take into account. Superior court 
didn’t want SCT to pass rule that Williams was suggesting—handoff to superior court. 
Compromise—immediate relief available in family court. Mom can go to superior court 
and seek relief under T25, where relief is most appropriate. Good solution for Maricopa 
Co. Co-located courts—easy access. In other counties—point well taken. If there were a 
legislative authorization for review that any IAH issued by any court impacts parenting 
issues, then family court would take. We didn’t have that among the options. Trying to 
avoid handoff of cases. Support looking to legislative solution but recognize conflict in 
laws where LJ courts are making decisions about kids but not under T25.  

Finn—even superior court judge – IAH goes to civil commissioner—doesn’t hear under T25. 
Every judge. 

Cohen—correct. Issue came up be LJ judges were asking for solution. 

Finn—agrees we need mechanism for judge to issue IAH, protect child, and then transfer to 
superior court. But T25 has control only over the parents.       

60 of 69



McMurdie—nothing in family court that could... indispensable third party. 

Cohen—we were going to get all of those cases. 

Mc—process shouldn’t be that we’re going to include every single case. Not every case is 
appealed or challenged. Not every OP is challenged. Burden should be put on party to 
whom there’s injury to take some action. If mom gets IAH because child injured by new 
GF and LJ court agrees and issues against IAH that affects father’s rights, why not place 
burden on father to file something in superior court to challenge and have SCT review 
both orders together. Put burden on injured party. IAH effective until defendant asks for 
review. 

Cohen—great solution. If statute authorized – would join 3d party. Probably exceptions. 
Superior court then balancing two different orders. IAH could be modified including 
removing child from it so long as there is adequate protection in Family court. they’re 
really coming to LJ court with custody cases. Even if contested, could review at superior 
court level.  

Finn—likes focus switching to impacted party who may/may not be in front of us. Dad v NBF. 
Mom would have to go to family court for relief if NBF cannot be around the child. Then 
you wouldn’t get all IAH, only those where impacted party takes action.  

Cohen—reconciling two inconsistent orders. what kind of action would injured party bring? 
Need statutory for new kind of hearing. Modify T12 to allow that review to take place 
under T25 as it relates to parenting orders. modify two statutes. Then modify rule to 
allow ... Burden should be on impacted parent. Asking to enforce their parenting time. 
Reconciling impact of two orders.  

Madsen—comes down to safety of children. If not emergency, IAH isn’t issued or children 
aren’t included. What happens with problems that it causes? Sees it as enforcement action 
for aggrieved parent to enforce parenting time. Fluid situation. Defendant on IAH may 
not be around for long time. Wouldn’t want to add unrelated 3d party to family court case 
because you could end up with ten different unrelated people on the case. Solution will 
usually be removing children from the IAH. Coordination/procedural issue than legal 
issue.  

McMurdie—if IAH causes defendant to not be part of parent’s life, then no issue. Don’t want to 
transfer cases if there’s no issue. This isn’t one-size-fits-all proposition. 

Finn—why does there need to be a statutory change? Would transfer only those IAH where 
judge can wear T25 and T12 hat at the same time to ensure consistency or make a 
change. [gives example of transfer of OP that affects family court case; req for hearing 

61 of 69



would happen in superior court.]. For IAH, not the parents. Names aren’t the same. We 
could hold the hearing but it could still be transferred at request of impacted party. Could 
also have contested hearing at the superior court. 

Cohen—as soon as LJ knew of family court case, they’d transfer case. Issue the order, if party 
wants hearing, then conduct hearing. Superior court Vera v Rodgers even if hearing on 
IAH at LJ level, then superior court could review. Affected parent could file enforcement 
action; superior court can request transfer of IAH. Do hearing on both orders. 

Bayardi—elegant solution. LJ wants to be able to protect children. If don’t send IAH 
automatically—we don’t always include the kids—issue the IAH, then aggrieved person 
can go through family court.  

Cohen—don’t think as limited as we think. Lots have it figured out to get IAH than to modify 
family court case. Strategically going to LJ courts, frequent flyers. Nonetheless, love 
elegant solution. 

McMurdie—simply say if filed in LJ court and LJ holds hearing and affirms IAH, it can still be 
reviewed by superior court if aggrieved parent files in family court. Still struggling with 
idea that commissioner hears IAH, then gets a second bite. Vera v Rodgers 

Cohen—need to make clear it’s not a transfer. LJ owns the case. You do the contested hearing. 
But aggrieved parent can take to superior court. If commissioner issued one, we can tell 
commissioner to contact family court judge through internal process. 

Sell—not second bite if don’t have same parties in the cases. 

McMurdie—boils down to same hearing with same allegations. 

Cohen—after hearing, order is affirmed, if I change in family court, can’t change affirmed IAH. 
That’s the problem. 

Finn—resolve by rule. LJ holds onto case. Other parent would go to superior court. Superior 
court would ask for IAH to be transferred.  

McMurdie—idea of where we’re going. Cohen, do you want to take first stab?  

Cohen—rule? 

McMurdie—simplest if we determine that we can do it by rule. ARPOP and transfer if requested 
by superior court if other parent files in family court. then figure out a family rule—
maybe enforcement action— 

Cohen—around Rule 91 with post-decree. 

62 of 69



Goldstein—great discussion. Possible issues are same regardless of system. Unrepresented 
people who don’t understand procedure or system. Will be those who abuse the process. 
Weed through those. Whatever court hearing injunction at whatever stage will make right 
decision. Clerk sets up separate case for transferred case. 

McMurdie—has to be done to comply with VAWA. 

Goldstein—case wouldn’t get transferred into family court but related. 

Cohen will have something to McMurdie for October 15 meeting. 

 Invite Bayardi and Finn to October 15 meeting. 

 

 

63 of 69



64 of 69



FAMILY COURT IMPROVEMENT COMMITTEE 
 

Date of Meeting: 
 
October 15, 2020 

Type of Action Required: 
 
[X ] Formal 

Action/Request 
 
[  ] Information Only 
 
[  ] Other 

Subject: 
 
Proposed Amendment  
ARFLP Rule 20 re: Interstate 
Documents 

 
PRESENTER(S):  Janet Sell, AAG  
 

DISCUSSION:  This proposed amendment creates an exception to the general rule in ARFLP 
Rule 20(b)(7) that pleadings filed with the court be originals.  The Central Registry of the 
Division of Child Support Enforcement (DCSS), like all IV-D agencies around the country, 
receives a lot of documents from other states in connection with its responsibilities to assist other 
states to establish and enforce support obligations. Some of these documents are received 
electronically, while others are received by regular mail.  Once received, however, all are 
scanned to the DCSS’s database.  With a decentralized workforce, both in DCSS and the Office 
of the Attorney General, use of electronic copies makes the litigation process substantially more 
efficient. Furthermore, once received by the courts, in most instances the original documents 
received from the other jurisdiction would be scanned anyway. This request is supported by 
A.R.S. § 25-1256 and OCSE PIQ-18-01 (Electronic Documents and Tribunals under UIFSA 
Section 316). 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION OR REQUEST (IF ANY):  
Request approval of the FCIC to submit this proposed rule change to the Supreme Court.  
 

65 of 69

https://azleg.gov/ars/25/01256.htm
https://www.acf.hhs.gov/css/resource/electronic-documents-and-tribunals-under-uifsa-316


66 of 69



Rule 20. Form of Documents 

 (a) Caption. The first page of every document filed with the court must contain a 
caption. A caption details the county, state, parties, and title of the document. Fictitious 
names are allowed if a party's name is unknown. When the party's true name is 
discovered, the pleading must be amended accordingly. 

(b) Document Format. Unless the court orders otherwise, all filed documents--other 
than a document submitted as an exhibit or attachment to a filing--must be prepared as 
follows: 

(1) Text and Background. The text of every document must be black on a plain 
white background. All documents filed must be single-sided. 

(2) Type Size and Font. Every typed document must use at least a 13-point type 
size. The court prefers proportionally spaced serif fonts, such as Times New 
Roman, Bookman, Century, Garamond, or Book Antiqua, and discourages 
monospaced or sans serif fonts such as Arial, Helvetica, Courier, or Calibri. 
Footnotes must be in at least a 13-point type size and must not appear in the 
space required for the bottom margin. 

(3) Page Size. Each page of a document must be 8 ½ by 11 inches. 

(4) Margins and Page Numbers. Margins must be set as follows: a margin at the 
top of the first page of not less than 2 inches; a margin at the top of each 
subsequent page of not less than 1-1/2 inches; a left-hand margin of not less 
than 1 inch; a right-hand margin of not less than 1/2 inch; and a margin at the 
bottom of each page of not less than 1/2 inch. Except for the first page, the 
bottom margin must include a page number. 

(5) Handwritten Documents. Handwritten documents must be legible. 

(6) Line Spacing. Typed text must be double-spaced. 

(7) Originals. Unless filing electronically or when including attachments, only 
originals may be filed. 

(8) Court Forms. Printed forms provided by the court or a court-authorized 
vendor may deviate from the requirements of this rule, but they must be single-
sided. Forms provided by the superior court, the Supreme Court, or a court-
authorized vendor are deemed to meet the requirements of this rule. 

(9) Interstate Forms.  Forms prescribed by the United States secretary of health 
and human services for use in interstate cases pursuant to the Uniform Interstate 
Family Support Act are deemed to comply with the requirements of this rule. 
Notwithstanding subsection (b)(7), such forms may be copies of the originals. 
Certified foreign orders or sworn statements of arrears may be copies so long as 
they contain the court's or government body's official seal of authority. 

67 of 69



(c) Electronically Filed Documents.

(1) Format.

(A) File Type. A document filed electronically that contains text, other than
a scanned document image that is submitted under this rule, must be in a
text-searchable .pdf, .odt, or .docx format, or other format permitted by
Administrative Order. A text-searchable .pdf format is preferred. A
proposed order must be in a format that permits it to be modified, such as
.odt or .docx or other format permitted by Administrative Order, and must
not be password protected.

(B) File Size. A document may not exceed the file size limits allowed by
the court's electronic filing portal, but it may be broken up into multiple files
to accommodate such a limit.

(2) Format of Attachments.

(A) Generally. An attachment to an electronically filed document also may
be filed electronically if it is attached to the same submission as either a
scanned image or an electronic copy using an approved file type and
format.

(B) Official Records. A scanned copy of an official record of a court or
government body may be filed electronically if it contains the court's or
body's official seal of authority or its equivalent.

(C) Notarized Documents. A scanned copy of a notarized document may
be filed electronically if it contains the notary's signature and stamp or
seal.

(D) Certified Mail, Return Receipt Card. When establishing proof of
service by a form of mail that requires a signed and returned receipt, the
return receipt may be filed electronically if both sides of the return receipt
card are scanned and filed.

(E) National Courier Service. When establishing proof of service by a
national courier service, the receipt for such service may be filed
electronically by scanning and filing the receipt.

(3) Bookmarks and Hyperlinks.

(A) Bookmarks. A bookmark is a linked reference to another page within
the same document. An electronically filed document may include
bookmarks. A document that is incapable of bookmarking may be made
accessible by a hyperlink. The use of bookmarks is encouraged.

68 of 69



(B) Hyperlinks. A hyperlink is an electronic link in a document to another
document or to a website. An electronically filed document may include
hyperlinks. Material that is not in the official court record does not become
part of the official record merely because it is made accessible by a
hyperlink. The use of hyperlinks is encouraged.

(C) Originals. An electronically filed document (or a scanned copy of a
document filed in hard copy) constitutes an “original” under Arizona Rule
of Evidence 1002.

Credits 
Added Aug. 30, 2018, effective Jan. 1, 2019. 
17B A. R. S. Rules Fam. Law Proc., Rule 20, AZ ST RFLP Rule 20 
Current with amendments received through 08/15/2020. 

69 of 69


	Agenda
	Draft Minutes 09-03-2020
	2021 Meeting Dates
	Cover Sheet - FCIC-CSGRS Update
	AZ CPR Answers Sept 25 w/ Appendix
	CSG Section 11 and 12_updated
	Cover Sheet FCIC-Training Workgroup
	Cover Sheet FCIC-Forms Workgroup
	FCIC-Forms Workgroup Application For Default
	Cover Sheet ARPOP Rule 35 
	The IAH-Parenting Order Conundrum
	Cover Sheet FCIC-Statutes & Rules Workgroup Rule 20
	PHX-#8939342-v1 Rule 20 Proposed Amendment



